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2015 was designated as the “Year of Water”  at USU 
because its water specialists are among the nation’s 
and even the world’s leading experts on many water-
related issues, particularly in the area of ecosystems, 
management, climate, water education, and society’s 
understanding of this precious resource.



with the 2015-16 academic year well under way, i would like to share 
with you some of the ways in which utah state university has made 
significant strides despite recent financial challenges. while we have 
seen improvement on some fronts, the national and global economic 
news and investment climate remains challenging. we are pleased 
utah state university has been able to keep to its promise of providing 
quality research, teaching, and service to the great state of utah.

while there is increasing evidence that the recession that has impact-
ed our economy for the last few years is coming to an end, we have been 
faced with dealing with two additional challenges that impacted our 
budget. first, we needed to offset revenue losses associated with the 
change in Lds missionary policy. we have largely been able to do that, 
and now a wave of returning missionaries is contributing to robust 
enrollment growth across the usu system. second, the federal seques-
tration and budget cuts to federal agencies have had significant negative 
impacts on research funding. however, we have had success in address-
ing those challenges. in fact, end-of-the-year numbers indicate another 
record year in contract and grant funding, a great compliment to our faculty and our colleagues at the usu research 
foundation. while both of these issues created new budget-related challenges for our university, we are confident 
that we have been able to navigate these challenges, just as we have dealt with the budget cuts of the past few years 
caused by the recession.

utah state university has the energy and vision necessary to be one of the leading institutions for higher education in 
the nation. in times like these, the university relies on all the members of our community, and by working together we 
will emerge as an even stronger university in the days ahead.

as the economic situation evolves, we will continue to keep you informed about how the university plans to respond. 
i am very grateful to you for the work you do on behalf of utah state university and for the people of utah. thank you. 

the financial statements that follow are prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles established 
by the governmental accounting standards board. these principles are recommended by the american institute of 
certified Public accountants and the national association of college and university business officers.

the state of utah auditor’s office has audited the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2015. their defin-
itive opinion is included with this report. the annual financial report is intended to establish the university’s financial 
position as of June 30, 2015. it is also intended to reflect the flow of financial resources to the university during the 
fiscal year 2014-2015, while disclosing how these resources are applied in accomplishing our mission. we are pleased 
to share this report with you.

From the President...

Stan L. Albrecht
President
Utah State University
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Utah State Capitol Complex, East Office Building, Suite E310  •  Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-2310  •  Tel: (801) 538-1025  •  auditor.utah.gov 

INDEPENDENT STATE AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 

To the Board of Trustees, Audit Committee 
 and 
Stan L. Albrecht, President 
Utah State University 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Utah State University (University), a component 
unit of the State of Utah, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Utah State University Research Foundation, a blended component unit 
foundation, which represents 3 percent, 2 percent, and 11 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position and 
revenues of the University. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished 
to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Utah State University Research 
Foundation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the University as of June 30, 2015, and the 
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changes in its financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

For fiscal year 2015, the University implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. As a result of this required change in accounting 
principle, the University recorded a $38 million reduction in beginning net position. The amounts reported 
for ending net position reflect the newly required net pension assets, deferred outflows of resources, net 
pension liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources related to the University’s participation in defined benefit 
retirement systems. See Notes K and P for further information. Our opinion for the University is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and the schedules of proportionate share of net pension liabilities and pension 
contributions, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the University’s basic financial statements.  The Letter from the President and the listing of the 
executive officers and board of trustees have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on this other information. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 4, 2015 
on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

 

Office of the Utah State Auditor 
November 4, 2015 



As Utah’s land-grant and space-grant institution, USU is the state’s second 
largest public research university and inspires students to pursue their own 
research projects every year. Utah State University closed the 2014– 15 fiscal 
year with record breaking external research funding. 
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this section provides an overview of the university’s financial activities in 
the current year compared to the prior year. total assets and liabilities are 
presented as well as the change in net position from the prior year. Revenues, 
expenses, appropriations from the state, contributions, etc., are analyzed 
and discussed. the cash activity is also summarized to show the change in 
cash from the prior year to the current year.

and Analysis
Discussion
Management’s
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for students. the college of eastern utah foundation is 
included because it serves as a fund-raising organization 
whose sole purpose is for the benefit of usu eastern.

the utah state university research foundation annually 
publishes audited financial statements. a copy of the au-
dited financial statements can be obtained from the utah 
state university research foundation, 1695 north re-
search Parkway, north Logan, utah 84341. the college of 
eastern utah foundation unaudited financial statements, 
compiled by an independent accounting firm, are available 
from the usu eastern development office, 451 east 400 
north, Price, utah 84501.

Introduction 
the following unaudited management’s discussion and 
analysis (md&a) includes an analysis of the financial 
condition and results of activities of utah state univer-
sity (university) for the fiscal year (fy) ended June 30, 
2015. the analysis includes the university’s condensed 
and comparative statement of net Position; statement 
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net Position; and 
statement of cash flows along with related graphs and 
comparative data. also included is management’s per-
spective of the university’s economic outlook.

the university is a component unit of the state of utah. 
the financial statements include the accounts of utah 
state university agricultural experiment station, utah 
state university water research Laboratory, utah state 
university cooperative extension service, utah state 
university uintah basin regional campus, utah state 
university southeast region, utah state university tooele 
regional campus, utah state university brigham city 
regional campus, and utah state university eastern (usu 
eastern), which are entities separately funded by state 

appropriations.

the utah state university research foundation (usurf), 
the utah state university foundation (foundation), the 
utah state university advanced weather systems foun-
dation (awsf), and the college of eastern utah founda-
tion, component units of the university, have also been 
consolidated in these financial statements. the utah state 
university research foundation is governed by a board 
of trustees appointed by the president of utah state 
university, under the direction of the university’s board 
of trustees. usurf is a dependent foundation of utah 
state university. it is reported as a part of the university 
because its primary purpose is to support the mission of 
utah state university in regards to research. the utah 
state university foundation is also governed by a board of 
trustees appointed by the president of the university. the 
utah state university foundation is a dependent foun-
dation of utah state university and serves as the main 
fund-raising arm of the university. awsf is governed by 
a board of directors appointed by the university. it is a 
supporting organization of the university that performs 
scientific research and offers educational opportunities 

Overview of 
Financial 
Statements
and Financial 
Analysis 
the management’s discussion and analysis is designed to 
provide an easily readable analysis of the university’s fi-
nancial activities based on facts, decisions, and conditions 
known at the date of the auditor’s report. the university’s 
financial statements for fiscal year 2015 are presented be-
ginning on page 21. the financial statements, note disclo-
sures, and this discussion are the responsibility of manage-
ment. this annual report consists of a series of financial 
statements, prepared in accordance with the governmen-
tal accounting standards board (gasb) statement no. 35, 
Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis — for Public Colleges and Universities. these 
financial statements focus on the operation, cash flows, 
and the main condition of the university as a whole. there 
are three financial statements presented: statement of net 
Position; statement of revenues, expenses, and changes 
in net Position; and statement of cash flows.
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from the data presented, readers of the statement of net 
Position have the information to determine the assets 
available to continue the operations of the university. 
they can also determine how much the university owes 
vendors, investors, and lending institutions. finally, the 
statement of net Position outlines the net position (assets 
plus deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities minus 
deferred inflows of resources) available to the university 
and defines that availability.

Statement of 
Net Position
the statement of net Position outlines the university’s 
financial condition at fiscal year end. this statement 
reflects the various assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 
of the university as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

CondenSed StAtement oF net PoSition 
AS oF JUne 30

2015 2014 Change % Change

 Assets

current assets $192,198,512 $144,025,448 $48,173,064 33.45%

non-current assets

net capital assets  709,458,580 681,471,707 27,986,873 

other non-current assets 471,476,517 486,734,116 (15,257,599)

total assets 1,373,133,609 1,312,231,271 60,902,338 4.64%

 Deferred Outflows of Resources
unamortized losses on bonds 2,036,600 2,286,574 (249,974) -10.93%

resources related to pensions 5,826,112 4,565,609  1,260,503 

total deferred outflows of resources 7,862,712 6,852,183  1,010,529 14.75%

 Liabilities

current liabilities 113,859,832 94,846,520 19,013,312 20.05%

non-current liabilities 182,724,182 198,395,398 (15,671,216) -7.90%

total liabilities 296,584,014 293,241,918 3,342,096 

 Deferred Inflows of Resources

resources related to pensions 3,548,725 -  3,548,725       -

total deferred inflows of resources 3,548,725 0 3,548,725       -

 Net Position

net investment in capital assets 585,148,796  562,997,550  22,151,246 3.93%

restricted – non-expendable

Primarily scholarships and fellowships 110,991,067 105,102,003 5,889,064 5.60%

Loans 13,163,145 13,119,699 43,446 0.33%

restricted – expendable 234,722,569 234,347,589 374,980 

unrestricted 136,838,005 110,274,695 26,563,310 24.09%

Total Net Position $1,080,863,582 $1,025,841,536 $55,022,046 5.36%

0.16%

27.61%

1.14%

-3.13%

4.11%
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under the terms of the various donor and federal government 
agreements. restricted expendable resources are available 
for expenditure by the university but must be expended for 
purposes as determined by donors and/or external entities 
that have placed time or purpose restrictions on the use of 
the assets. the last category, unrestricted, discloses the 
resources available to the university to be used for any lawful 
purpose of the university.

certain June 30, 2014 balances have been adjusted for com- 
parative purposes as described in note P – Prior Period 
adjustments of net Position. in fiscal year 2015, the universi-

ComPoSition oF tHe
UniVeRSitY’S net PoSition 

BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2015
$1,080,863,582

 restricted – exPendabLe   21.7%

54.1% 
net investment in caPitaL assets

11.5% 
restricted – non-exPendabLe

12.7% unrestricted

net position is divided into three major categories. the 
first category, net investment in capital assets, reflects 
the university’s equity in property, plant, and equipment 
owned by the university. the second category, restricted, 
is further divided into two subcategories: non-expend-
able and expendable. the corpus of restricted non-ex-
pendable resources as it pertains to endowments is only 
available for investment purposes. donors have primarily 
restricted income derived from these investments to fund 
scholarships and fellowships. the corpus of restricted 
non-expendable resources as it pertains to loan funds is 
only available for the purpose of issuing loans to students 
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investments. the net increase in capital assets is largely due 
to several large construction projects in progress, including 
the aggie recreation center, the huntsman hall, the tooele 
science and technology building, and the brigham city 
academic building. the university capitalized $17.9 million, 
$12.6 million, $8 million, and $5.3 million, respectively, for 
these projects during 2015. the majority of the increase 
of $19 million in current liabilities is due to a $10.8 million 
increase in the amount payable to the state of utah division 
of facilities and construction management for construction 
project expenses. the non-current liabilities decrease of $15.7 
million is due to debt service payments for bonds and notes 
payable, and a reduction in the actuarially calculated net 
pension liability.

changes in total net position as presented in the statement 
of net Position are based on the activity presented in the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net Posi-
tion. the purpose of this statement is to present the revenues 
received by the university, both operating and non-operat-
ing, and the expenses paid by the university, operating and 
non-operating, and any other revenues, expenses, gains, and 
losses received or expended by the university.

operating revenues are received for providing goods and 
services to the various customers and constituencies of the 
university. operating expenses are those expenses paid to 
acquire or produce the goods and services provided in return 
for the operating revenues, and to carry out the mission 
of the university. non-operating revenues are revenues 
received for which goods and services are not provided; for 
example, state appropriations are non-operating revenues 
because they are provided by the Legislature to the univer-
sity without the Legislature directly receiving commensurate 
goods and services in return for those revenues. without the 
non-operating revenues, in particular the state appropria-
tions, private gifts, and financial aid grants, the university 
would not be able to cover its costs of operations. these 
sources are critical to the university’s financial stability and 
directly impact the quality of its programs. in fiscal year 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position   

2015, funding from these sources was adequate to cover 
all of the university’s costs of operations. 

the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net Position shows the activity that resulted in a $55 
million increase in net position for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2015.

the university experienced a net operating loss in fiscal 
year 2015 of $231 million. this operating loss highlights 
the university’s dependency on non-operating revenues 
such as state appropriations and private gifts to meet its 
costs of operations and provide funds for the acquisition 
of capital assets.

total 2015 operating revenues increased by $20.6 million 
(5.7%) over 2014. tuition and fee revenues increased 
$10.8 million (9.9%) which reflects increases in tuition 
rates, and increases in enrollment. contracts and grants 
have continued to increase, providing $7.8 million of the 
increase in operating revenues, reflecting the universi-
ty’s continuing research efforts. the auxiliary enterprises 
provided $2 million of the increase due to increases in 
rates charged for various auxiliary enterprises services.

ty’s total net position increased $55 million (5.4%) to $1.08 
billion. the increase reflects those revenues that were 
received during 2015 but were not used for operations or 
payment of interest on capital-asset related debt.

total assets increased $61 million (4.6%) while total 
liabilities increased $3.3 million (1.1%). current assets 
increased $48.2 million largely due to $18.5 million more 
in short-term investments, and $24.8 million in cash and 
cash equivalents. the increases in short-term invest-
ments, and cash and cash equivalents is mainly due to the 
decision to have funds available for current construction 
projects and other current obligations. non-current assets 
increased $12.7 million mostly due to the net increase of 
$28 million more in capital assets and $11.2 million less in 
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CondenSed StAtement oF ReVenUeS, exPenSeS, 
And CHAngeS in net PoSition

FoR tHe YeARS ended JUne 30

2015 2014 ChANge % ChANge

Operating Revenues

tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of: 
    fy 2015 – $70,385,518; fy 2014 – $64,753,038) $120,604,507 $109,763,378 $10,841,129             9.88%

contracts, grants, and federal appropriations 177,736,560 169,952,835 7,783,725             4.58%

auxiliary enterprises 46,676,670 44,683,682 1,992,988             4.46%

other operating revenues 37,684,541 37,733,080 (48,539)           

total operating revenues 382,702,278 362,132,975 20,569,303             5.68%

Operating expenses

salaries and wages 278,044,304 269,666,808 8,377,496 

employee benefits 102,755,192 100,054,411 2,700,781             2.70%

other operating expenses 158,263,562 151,205,039 7,058,523             4.67%

scholarships and fellowships 32,920,131 30,027,362 2,892,769             9.63%

depreciation 41,709,640 41,527,931 181,709             0.44%

total operating expenses 613,692,829 592,481,551 21,211,278             3.58%

operating loss (230,990,551) (230,348,576) (641,975)             0.28%

Non-Operating Revenues

state appropriations 182,193,753 172,237,348 9,956,405             5.78%

Private gifts 14,398,439 19,941,174 (5,542,735)          -27.80%

financial aid grants 40,726,907 39,474,953 1,251,954             

other 23,342,846 40,779,805 (17,436,959)          -42.76%

net non-operating revenues 260,661,945 272,433,280 (11,771,335)            -4.32%

income before other revenues/(expenses) 29,671,394 42,084,704 (12,413,310)          -29.50%

Other Revenues/(expenses)

state appropriations for capital purposes 7,985,988 7,272,764 713,224             9.81%

Private grants and gifts for capital purposes 19,285,840 18,571,938 713,902             3.84%

additions to permanent endowments 5,119,710 4,252,115 867,595           20.40%

other – net (7,040,886) (3,244,453) (3,796,433)         -117.01%

net other revenues 25,350,652 26,852,364 (1,501,712)            -5.59%

increase in net position 55,022,046 68,937,068 (13,915,022)          

Net Position – Beginning of Year as Previously Reported 1,063,052,211 994,115,143 68,937,068             6.93%

Prior period adjustments (note P) (37,210,675) (37,210,675) 0             0.00%

Net Position – Beginning of Year as Adjusted 1,025,841,536 956,904,468 68,937,068             7.20%

Net Position – end of Year $1,080,863,582 $1,025,841,536 $55,022,046             5.36%

-0.13%

            3.11%

3.17%

-20.19%
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non-operating revenues decreased $11.8 million (4.3%). 
an increase of $10 million in state appropriations was 
offset by a $5.5 million decrease in private gift revenue and 
a $15.7 million decrease in investment income. although 
private gift revenue is down, the university has continued 
to receive generous gifts, including $8 million to be utilized 
in the Jon m. huntsman school of business educational 
programs. investment income decreased largely due 
to lower rates of return in the investment market and the 
decision of the university to convert investments to cash.

state appropriations and private grants and gifts for 
capital purposes are helping to fund various capital proj-
ects which are discussed in the capital asset and debt 
administration section on page 16. state appropriations 
for capital purposes, through the division of facilities and 
construction management, were $8 million. Private grants 
and gifts for capital purposes were $19.3 million, of which 
$7.5 million was received for the huntsman hall project, 
$6 million was received for the fine arts building addition 
and renovation project, and $3 million was received for 

debt service of the series 2009 research revenue bonds, 
of which a portion of the proceeds funded the construction 
of the emma eccles Jones early childhood education and 
research building.

total operating expenses increased $21.2 million (3.6%) 
in 2015. salaries and benefits went up $11.1 million 
(3%) mainly due to the newly required gasb statement 
68 actuarial calculated pension expenses of $7.1 million 
and modest salary increases. other operating expenses 
increased $7.1 million (4.7%) largely due to an increase of 
$3.4 million in auxiliary enterprises expenses for repairs 
and maintenance of buildings and equipment and an 
increase of $1.6 million in research contracts and grants 
corresponding to the increase in related revenue. scholar-
ships and fellowships increased $2.9 million (9.6%) due to 
increased tuition and fee rates and increased enrollment. 
the increase in other expenses of $3.8 million included a 
one-time loss on the sale of land relating to the college 
of eastern utah foundation totaling $2 million.

Utah State University 
professor Rich Etchberger 
is the 2015 Utah Carnegie 
Professor of the Year. 
Etchberger, a wildlife 
science professor at Utah 
State University’s Uintah 
Basin campus in Vernal, 
is the University’s 14th 
faculty member to 
receive the prestigious
 educational honor.
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ReVenUeS USed FoR oPeRAting exPenSeS
FoR FiSCAL YeAR 2015

OPErATiNg rEvENUES – $382,702,278
NON-OPErATiNg rEvENUES – $260,661,945

TOTAL – $643,364,223

oPeRAting ReVenUeS non-oPeRAting ReVenUeS

5.9% 
other

18.8% 
net tuition and fees

28.3% 
state aPProPriations

2.2% 
Private gifts

6.3% 
financiaL aid grants

3.6% 
other

7.3% 
auxiLiary  enterPrises

27.6% 
contracts, 

grants, and 

federaL

 aPProPriations
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Statement of
Cash Flows 
the final statement presented by utah state university 
is the statement of cash flows. the statement of cash 
flows presents detailed information about the cash ac-
tivity of the university during the fiscal year. the state-
ment is divided into five sections. the first section deals 
with operating cash flows and shows the net cash used 
by operating activities. the second section includes cash 
flows from non-capital financing activities. this section 
includes the cash received and spent for non-operating, 
non-investing, and non-capital financing purposes. the 
third section includes cash flows from capital and related 
financing activities. this section includes the cash used 

for the acquisition and construction of capital and related 
items. the fourth section includes the cash flows from 
investing activities and shows the purchases, proceeds, 
and interest received from investing activities. a con-
densed version of these first four sections is provided on 
the following page. the fifth section of the statement of 
cash flows is not included in the condensed statement 
of cash flows, which reconciles the net cash used for op-
erations to the operating loss reflected on the statement 
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net Position. this 
reconciliation is available for review in the statement of 

cash flows on page 25.

25.8% 
other oPerating exPenses

5.4% 
schoLarshiPs and feLLowshiPs

6.8% 
dePreciation

62% 
emPLoyee comPensation

oPeRAting exPenSeS

FiSCAL YEAr 2015 – $613,692,829
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the university’s cash and cash equivalents increased by 
$26,227,566 for a total of $85,129,852. this increase re-
sulted from the decision to have more cash on hand, rather 
than invested, to pay for current obligations. 

Capital Asset 
and Debt 
Administration 
construction of the new aggie recreation center is nearly 
complete. the $30 million facility is located adjacent to the 
health Physical education and recreation (hPer) building. 
the project includes the construction of a 100,000 square-
foot facility which will include: a fitness center with new 
locker rooms, indoor running/jogging/walking track, climb-
ing center, cardio/weight rooms, three full-size basketball/
volleyball courts, and a multi-activity court that can also 
serve as a venue for lectures, convocations, entertainment, 
or theatrical events. the university’s outdoor recreation 
Program and the campus recreation offices will be relo-
cated within the aggie recreation center. completion is 
scheduled for late fall 2015. construction of this facility is 

funded from the proceeds of revenue bonds issued in au-
gust 2013. debt service for the bonds will be funded from 
a $75 per semester student fee which began in fall se-
mester of 2015. this student building fee was approved 
by a student body vote in spring semester of 2012.

construction of the huntsman hall continues. the proj-
ect is a $46 million, 120,000 square-foot building that will 
be a state-of-the-art facility wrapping around the south 
and west sides of the george s. eccles business building. 
it will feature new case-study classrooms and new stu-
dent meeting rooms, as well as administrative and other 
academic program spaces. it will help meet the need for 
technology-infused collaborative spaces where group 
learning in physical and virtual teams can take place. the 
building was funded by private donations and state ap-
propriations. huntsman hall is scheduled for completion 
in spring 2016.

construction of the central instruction building 
continues. the $20 million facility is located on the 
usu eastern, Price campus, and it will replace the 
aging music and student activity center (sac) buildings. 
Located adjacent to the geary theatre, the project in-
cludes 70,600 square-feet of multi-purpose instructional 
space that will bring together criminal justice, communi-

cation, theatre, music, and visual arts into one facility. 

CondenSed StAtement oF CASH FLowS
FoR tHe YeARS ended JUne 30

 
2015

 
2014 ChANge % ChANge

Cash Provided/(Used) By:
(1) operating activities ($175,571,312) ($187,359,975) $11,788,663                6.29%

(2) non-capital financing activities 253,288,263 237,880,499 15,407,764                6.48%

(3) capital and related financing activities (58,087,107) 2,693,555 (60,780,662)         -2256.52%

(4) investing activities 6,597,722 (33,828,898) 40,426,620              119.50%

Net Increase in Cash and Cash equivalents 26,227,566 19,385,181 6,842,385              35.30%

Cash and Cash equivalents – Beginning of Year 58,902,286  39,517,105  19,385,181               49.06%

Cash and Cash equivalents – end of Year $85,129,852  $58,902,286  $26,227,566               44.53%
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the building was funded by state appropriations and is 
scheduled for completion in fall 2015.

utah state university held the groundbreaking ceremony 
on october 9, 2014 for the new brigham city academic 
building. the $15 million, 54,400 square-foot facility will 
anchor the 44 acre campus that once housed the former 
intermountain indian school. the Legislature appro-
priated $7.5 million for the building with brigham city 
bonding for the remaining $7.5 million. the new facility 
will contain broadcast-enabled classrooms, a lecture hall, 
multi-purpose room, and offices for faculty, advisors, 
and staff. the building will serve the educational needs 
of brigham city and the surrounding region as they con-
tinue to grow. the facility is scheduled for completion 
in fall 2015.

the tooele science and technology building is currently 
under construction, and will provide 27,300 square-feet 
of space for distance education classrooms and teach-
ing laboratories for biology, chemistry, and physics. the 
building will be the first on the newly acquired campus 
property south of the existing campus facilities.

the romney stadium west side renovation is currently 
under construction. beginning with the 2016 football sea-
son, the stadium will be known as maverik stadium. the 
project consists of removing the old press box structure 
to make way for a new 86,000 square-foot facility on the 
west side of the existing stadium. it will include a new 
club level lounge, restrooms, concessions, lobby space, 
and press box. the project will add approximately 1,100 
new premium seats including skyboxes, patio seating, 
and club seats located above the existing stadium chair-
back seats. completion of the project is anticipated in 
summer 2016. the project is funded, in part, with the 
proceeds of the university’s $23,900,000 student build-
ing fee revenue bonds, series 2015, that were issued on 
July 9, 2015.

the valley view residence hall replacement is currently 
in design and will include the demolition and replacement 
of the aging high rise residence hall on central campus. 
the new residence hall will provide up to 390 beds and 

110,000 square-feet for students living on campus 
and will be sited on the central campus for maximum 
convenience. construction will begin in spring 2016 and 
is expected to be completed for fall semester 2017. the 
project is funded with the proceeds of the university’s 
$24,455,000 student fee and housing system revenue 
bonds, series 2015, that were issued on september 
23, 2015.

the c4isr building is phase i of a iv phase project for 
the space dynamics Lab (sdL) at the usu innovation 
campus. the building will provide up to 46,000 square-
feet for offices, electronics, computer testing labs, com-
puter server rooms, conference rooms, and a marketing 
demo room. the building will provide a high level of se-
curity and technology needed for the research program. 
the project is currently under design and construction 
will begin in spring 2016. the project is funded with 
the proceeds of the university’s $19,500,000 federally 
taxable research revenue bonds, series 2015, that were 
issued on october 8, 2015.

a new building for clinical services offered within the 
emma eccles Jones college of education and human 
services is currently in design. the project will house up 
to 100,000 square-feet of clinical, research, and office 
space. it will accommodate patients within the commu-
nity receiving a variety of treatments and consultations. 
the clinical services building will support an integrated, 
interdisciplinary program to train graduate students in 
a professional setting in closely related clinical fields, 
engage faculty members across disciplines, provide 
state-of-the-art equipment, and facilitate research with 
an interdisciplinary focus. construction will begin in 
spring 2016.

the fine arts complex addition and renovation is a 
phased project that will include an addition to the west 
side of the building and major renovations to portions 
of the fine arts center. Phase i includes renovations 
for the Kent concert hall, tippetts gallery, and a 6,700 
square-foot addition to the scene shop. construction 
commenced in summer 2015. Phase ii will include a new 
addition to the west for expansion of the nora eccles 
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USU is the third highest 
ranked public university 
in the West and #5 in the 
nation for lowest tuition 
in “America’s Top Colleges” 
(Forbes, August 2015)
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harrison museum of art. it will feature a prominent new 
entrance and lobby on the northwest corner to the fine 
arts center.

the university completed the construction of its state-
of-the-art electric vehicle and roadway (evr) research 
facility and test track, the first facility of its kind in the 
united states. the $1.8 million complex includes a 4,800 
square-foot research building and electrified quarter 
mile oval-shaped test track designed to demonstrate 
in-motion wireless power charging for electric vehicles. 
modular charging pads embedded under the track can 
seamlessly charge electric vehicles while they are in 
motion. the evr is located near the existing usu Power 
electronics Lab at usu’s innovation campus to leverage 
the combined capabilities of the two facilities. faculty 
and staff are collaborating with many major industry and 
educational partners to develop and enhance electric 
vehicle and roadway technology.

Economic
Outlook
utah’s economy continues to expand at a moderate pace 
and continues to be among the top states for growth 
as reported by several independent studies. once again 
the state has reported budget surpluses for the recently 
completed fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. forecasts 
continue to be positive for fiscal year 2016 and beyond 
with construction activity and new job growth as import-
ant indicators. as a result of expanding state revenues, 
the university received new ongoing and one-time 
appropriations during the previous legislative session and 
the forecast for sustained economic growth improves the 
opportunity for increased legislative funding support for 
the university.

as expected, enrollments are up at nearly all of usu’s 
campuses. headcount on the main campus increased 
nearly 7 percent to a record high of just under 18,000 
students in the fall of 2015. regional campuses also ex-
perienced impressive enrollment growth and the number 
of online courses taken by usu students continues to 
increase dramatically. although a slight decline is ex-
pected next year as missionary service patterns return 
to normal, usu has prepared well for a leveling of enroll-
ment fluctuations and expects modest but steady growth 
moving forward.

the university has a diverse source of revenues, includ-
ing those from the state of utah, student tuition and 
fees, sponsored research programs, private support, and 
self-supporting enterprises. this diversity of revenues 
continues to provide financial stability and significant pro-
tection against potentially difficult future economic times.

management believes that usu’s financial position 
will continue to enable the university to move forward 
and accomplish its mission of being one of the nation’s 
premier student-centered, land-grant, and space-
grant universities.

david t. Cowley
Vice President for Business and Finance
Utah State University



In 2015 President Stan L. Albrecht celebrates ten years 
with USU.  Since taking the helm in February 2005, 
President Albrecht has seen the University through 
innovation, growth, change, and many successes.
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the financial statements consist of the statement of net position; the 
statement of Revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and the 
statement of cash flows. each statement presents a different financial 
perspective of the university for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Statements
Financial



StAtement oF net PoSition
JUne 30, 2015

Assets
current assets

cash and cash equivalents (notes a, b, and d) $81,995,711 
short-term investments (notes b and d) 44,041,040 
accounts receivable from primary government (note e) 13,178,082 
accounts receivable from others – net of allowances of $699,989 (note e) 42,726,562 
credits receivable (note e) 572,406 
notes receivable – net of allowances of $25,053 (note e) 1,361,874 
inventories (note a) 4,197,562 
Prepaid expenses 4,125,275 

total current assets 192,198,512  
non-current assets

restricted
cash and cash equivalents (notes a, b, and d) 3,134,141 
short-term investments (notes b and d) 2,410,879 
investments (notes c and d) 158,295,245 
accounts receivable (note e) 25,913,130 
notes receivable (note e) 61,533 
real estate held for resale 445,520 

accounts receivable (note e) 13,824,199 
notes receivable – net of allowances of $140,568 (note e) 10,337,642 
investments (notes c and d) 256,876,214 
other non-current assets   131,726 
net pension asset (note K)   46,288 
Property, plant, and equipment – net (note f) 709,458,580 

total non-current assets 1,180,935,097 
total assets 1,373,133,609

Deferred Outflows of Resources
unamortized refunding losses on bonds 2,036,600 
resources related to pensions (note K)    5,826,112 

total deferred outflows of resources 7,862,712 
Liabilities

current liabilities
accounts payable and accrued liabilities to primary government (note g ) 16,858,029 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities to others (note g ) 48,413,887 
Liability for compensated absences (note h) 11,837,156 
Liability for early retirement (note h) 4,444,441 
unearned revenue and deposits 23,246,052 
other current liabilities (note h) 183,334 
funds held for others 57,245 
notes payable to primary government (note h) 146,557 
bonds, notes, and contracts payable (notes h and i ) 8,673,131 

total current liabilities 113,859,832 
non-current liabilities

Liability for compensated absences (note h) 5,662,414 
Liability for early retirement (note h) 7,076,988 
notes payable to primary government (note h) 288,825 
deposit due to primary government (note h) 465,000 
other non-current liabilities (note h) 1,156,880 
net pension liability (note K)   37,273,380 
bonds, notes, and contracts payable (notes h and i ) 130,800,695 

total non-current liabilities 182,724,182 
total liabilities 296,584,014 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
resources related to pensions (note K)    3,548,725

total deferred inflows of resources 3,548,725
Net Position

net investment in capital assets 585,148,796 
restricted

non-expendable
Primarily scholarships and fellowships 110,991,067 
Loans 13,163,145 

expendable
research, instruction, and public service 177,173,317 
capital projects 57,549,252 

unrestricted 136,838,005 
Total Net Position $1,080,863,582  

See notes to financial statements
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StAtement oF ReVenUeS, exPenSeS, 
And CHAngeS in net PoSition

FoR tHe YeAR ended JUne 30, 2015

Operating Revenues
tuition and fees – net of scholarship allowance of $70,385,518 $120,604,507 
federal appropriations 5,132,187 
federal contracts and grants 145,282,788 
state contracts and grants 10,045,701 
Local contracts and grants 2,805,012 
Private contracts and grants 14,470,872 
sales and services of educational departments 12,516,265 
conferences and institutes (non-credit) 7,332,858 
service departments 2,215,933 
auxiliary enterprises 46,676,670 
other operating revenues 15,619,485 

total operating revenues 382,702,278 
Operating expenses

salaries and wages 278,044,304 
employee benefits 95,656,845 
actuarial calculated pension expenses   7,098,347 
other operating expenses 158,263,562 
scholarships and fellowships 32,920,131 
depreciation 41,709,640 

total operating expenses 613,692,829 
operating loss (230,990,551)

Non-Operating Revenues/(expenses)
state appropriations 182,193,753 
state grants 8,250,501 
state land-grant revenues 420,650 
financial aid grants 40,726,907 
Private gifts 14,398,439 
investment income 14,848,005 
other – net (176,310)

net non-operating revenues 260,661,945 
income before other revenues/(expenses) 29,671,394 

Other Revenues/(expenses)
state appropriations for capital purposes 7,985,988 
Private grants and gifts for capital purposes 19,285,840 
interest on capital asset related debt (4,076,093)
additions to permanent endowments 5,119,710 
other (2,964,793)

net other revenues 25,350,652 
increase in net position 55,022,046 

Net Position – Beginning of Year as Previously Reported 1,063,052,211 
Prior period adjustments (note P) (37,210,675)

Net Position – Beginning of Year as Adjusted 1,025,841,536 

Net Position – end of Year $1,080,863,582 

See notes to financial statements
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StAtement oF CASH FLowS
FoR tHe YeAR ended JUne 30, 2015

 Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
 tuition and fees $123,570,659 

 federal appropriations  5,132,187 

 contracts and grants  173,084,135 

 sales and services of educational departments  12,516,265 

 conferences and institutes (non-credit)  7,332,858 

 service departments  2,234,707 

 auxiliary enterprises  47,444,436 

 other operating receipts  15,874,037 

 Payments to employees for salaries and benefits  (385,167,588)

 Payments to suppliers  (145,264,188)

 Payments for scholarships and fellowships  (32,920,131)

 Loans issued to students  (1,520,519)

 Loan payments received from students  2,111,830 

 net cash used by operating activities (175,571,312)

 Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities 
 state appropriations  182,648,597 

 state grants  6,132,242 

 state land-grant revenues  526,450 

 financial aid grants  40,889,570 

 Private gifts  23,500,595 

 federal direct loan receipts  61,668,548 

 federal direct loan payments  (61,714,458)

 other deductions  (363,281)

 net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 253,288,263 

 Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
 state appropriations for capital purposes  4,262,269 

 Private grants and gifts for capital purposes  20,282,184 

 Proceeds from capital debt  554,693 

 other additions  1,931,518 

 cash paid for capital assets  (71,830,653)

 Payment of capital debt and leases  (9,033,899)

 interest paid on capital asset related debt  (4,253,219)

 net cash used by capital and related financing activities (58,087,107)

Table continued on next page
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StAtement oF CASH FLowS (continued)
FoR tHe YeAR ended JUne 30, 2015

See notes to financial statements

 Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
 Purchases of investments (238,750,183)

 Proceeds from sale of investments  233,950,244 

 interest and dividends received from investments  11,397,661 

 net cash provided by investing activities 6,597,722 

 net increase in cash and cash equivalents 26,227,566 

 cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year 58,902,286 

 Cash and Cash equivalents – end of Year $85,129,852 

 Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 
 operating loss ($230,990,551)

 adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities 

 depreciation expense  41,709,640 

 gifts-in-kind and transfers reducing payments to suppliers  594,442 

 changes in assets and liabilities 

 accounts receivable  (977,526)

 inventories  674,110 

 Prepaid expenses  (1,932,578)

 accounts payable and accrued expenses  14,218,937 

 unearned revenues and deposits  5,319,469 

 compensated absences and early retirement  (1,712,580)

 net pension liability    (3,211,049)

 net student loan activity  736,374 

 Net Cash Used by Operating Activities ($175,571,312)

 Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities 
 fixed assets acquired by incurring capital lease obligations $1,481,364 

 completed construction projects transferred from state of utah  1,432,283 

 change in fair value of investments recognized as a component of investment income  3,394,001 

 amortization of original issue premium, reoffering premium, and net loss on bonds  (177,126)

 additions to pledges receivable for non-capital financing activities  981,543 

 additions to pledges receivable for capital and related financing activities  7,612,072 

 disposal of capital assets due to write off  (4,546,311)

 gifts of capital assets  1,353,272 

 Total Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities $11,531,098 



Since its founding in 1888, USU has evolved from a small agricultural college to one 
that is nationally recognized for its intellectual leadership and research, particularly in 
the areas of land, water, space, and life enhancement.

Since its founding in 1888, USU has evolved from a small agricultural college to one 
that is nationally recognized for its intellectual leadership and research, particularly in 
the areas of land, water, space, and life enhancement.

Since its founding in 1888, USU has evolved from a small agricultural college to one 
that is nationally recognized for its intellectual leadership and research, particularly in 
the areas of land, water, space, and life enhancement.
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the notes to the financial statements communicate information essential for 
fair presentation of the basic financial statements that is not displayed on 
the face of the financial statements. as such, the notes form an integral part 
of the basic financial statements as they present more detailed information 
about the university’s investments, bonds outstanding, capital assets, etc.

Notes to

Statements
Financial
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A. Summary 
of Significant 
Accounting 
Policies 
The significant accounting policies followed by Utah State 
University are described below.

   
Basis of Presentation   
  
the university is a component unit of the state of utah. 
the financial statements include the accounts of utah state 
university agricultural experiment station, utah state uni-
versity water research Laboratory, utah state university 
cooperative extension service, utah state university uin-
tah basin regional campus, utah state university south-
east region, utah state university tooele regional campus, 
utah state university brigham city regional campus, and 
utah state university eastern (usu eastern), which are 
entities separately funded by state appropriations.

the utah state university research foundation (usurf), 
the utah state university foundation (foundation), the 
college of eastern utah foundation, and utah state uni-
versity advanced weather systems foundation (awsf) 
are blended component units of the university and have 
been consolidated in these financial statements. usurf 
is governed by a board of trustees appointed by the 
president of utah state university, under the direction of 
the university’s board of trustees. usurf is a dependent 
foundation of utah state university and is reported as a 
part of the university because its primary purpose is to 
support the mission of utah state university in regards 
to research. the utah state university foundation is 
also governed by a board of trustees appointed by the 
president of the university. the foundation is a depen-
dent foundation of utah state university and serves as 
the main fund-raising arm of the university. the college 

of eastern utah foundation is governed by a board of 
trustees appointed by a nominating committee of current 
members of the board of trustees. its primary role is to 
support the mission of usu eastern. awsf is governed 
by a board of directors appointed by utah state univer-
sity. awsf is a supporting organization of the university 
that performs scientific research and offers educational 
opportunities for students.

usurf annually publishes audited financial statements. a 
copy of the audited financial statements can be obtained 
from usurf, 1695 north research Parkway, north Logan, 
utah 84341. the college of eastern utah foundation un-
audited financial statements, compiled by an independent 
accounting firm, are available in the usu eastern devel-
opment office, 451 east 400 north, Price, utah 84501.

Basis of Accounting

for financial reporting purposes, the university is consid-
ered a special purpose government engaged only in busi-
ness-type activities. accordingly, the university’s financial 
statements have been presented using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. under the accrual basis, revenues are recog-
nized when earned and expenses are recorded when an 
obligation has been incurred. all significant intra-agency 
transactions have been eliminated. when both restricted 
and unrestricted resources are available, such resources 
are spent and tracked at the discretion of the department 
within the guidelines of donor restrictions.  

the accounting policies of the university conform in all 
material respects with generally accepted accounting 
principles (gaaP) as prescribed by the governmental 
accounting standards board.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
   
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less.
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Investments

the university accounts for its investments at fair value 
in accordance with gasb statement no. 31, Accounting 
and Financial reporting for Certain investments and for 
External investment Pools. changes in unrealized gain/
(loss) on the carrying value of investments are reported 
as a component of investment income in the statement of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net Position.

a portion of the university’s endowment portfolio is 
invested in “alternative investments.” these investments, 
unlike more traditional investments, generally do not have 
readily obtainable market values and typically take the 
form of limited partnerships. the university values these 
investments based on the values provided by the partner-
ships as well as their audited financial statements. if June 
30 statements are available, those values are used pref-
erentially. however, some partnerships have fiscal years 
ending at other than June 30. if June 30 valuations are not 
available, the value is progressed from the most recently 
available valuation taking into account subsequent capital 
calls and distributions.

Inventories  

the value of the university campus store inventory is 
recorded at average cost, determined using the retail 
inventory method, while all other inventory values are 
essentially lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market, 
including the cost of project houses waiting to be sold 
or under construction. obsolete or unusable items are 
reduced to net realizable values.

Non-Current Assets

assets that are externally restricted for capital purpos-
es, to make debt service payments, maintain sinking or 
reserve funds, or that represent assets of the university’s 
endowments (including real estate held for resale) are 
classified as non-current restricted assets.

the remaining non-current assets include those re-
ceivables that will not be realized within the next year, 
investments, the cost of land purchased for future project 
houses, and the university’s property, plant, and equip-
ment, net of depreciation.

Property, Plant, 
and Equipment   
 
the university componentizes certain research facilities 
to accommodate the different useful lives of components 
for depreciation purposes.

all buildings are carried on an estimated historical cost 
basis, at cost at date of acquisition, or at fair value at 
date of donation in the case of gifts. all other physical 
plant and equipment are stated at cost when purchased 
or constructed or fair value at date of donation in the 
case of gifts.

the university capitalizes all equipment with a unit cost 
of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life greater 
than one year. Purchased software is capitalized when 
acquisition costs are $100,000 or more. buildings costing 
$250,000 or more are capitalized, as are improvements to 
buildings costing $250,000 or more that extend the useful 
life of the building. improvements other than buildings 
costing $250,000 or more are also capitalized. all library 
physical collections inventoried in the university’s recog-
nized libraries are capitalized regardless of cost. art and 
special collections held by the university are capitalized 
but not depreciated. the university computes depreci-
ation using the straight-line composite method over the 
estimated useful life of the assets. the estimated useful 
lives are as follows: (figure a.1) 

FIguRE A.1

buildings 10 – 40 years

improvements other than buildings 5 – 20 years

equipment 3 – 15 years

Purchased software 5 – 10 years

Library physical collections 20 years



Utah State University     |     FY 2015     |     Notes to Financial Statements30

the university provides repair and replacement re-
serves for certain properties as required by the related 
bond indentures. routine repairs and maintenance are 
charged to operating expense in the period in which the 
expense was incurred.

Pension Related Assets, 
Liabilities, Deferred Outflows, 
and Deferred Inflows   
  

the university records its share of any unfunded liability 
associated with participation in the defined benefit 
plans of the utah retirement systems (systems). for 
purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred 
outflows of resources related to pensions, deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
the systems’ Pension Plan and additions to or deduc-
tions from the systems’ fiduciary net position are de-
termined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
systems. for this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefits terms. 
investments are reported at fair value.

Unearned Revenues  
 

unearned revenues consist primarily of amounts 
received during the fiscal year that have not yet been 
earned and are related to the subsequent accounting 
period. these sources consist of contract and grant 
sponsors, amounts received for tuition and fees, 
and certain auxiliary activities.

Compensated Absences  
   

sick leave is not accrued but is reported in the period 
of actual expenditure. sick leave does not vest to the 
employee but is allowed on an earned time basis. at the 
end of each calendar year, employees who have earned 

48 days of sick leave may convert up to four days of sick 
leave to annual leave, subject to other restrictions of 
the university.

annual leave, including converted sick leave, is accrued 
and reported as earned. employees are allowed to carry a 
maximum of 34 days annual leave. the 34 days is variable 
depending on the number of sick leave days the employee 
is allowed to convert at calendar year end.

Gifts

the university received $594,442 of gifts-in-kind, that 
were recorded as revenue and expense during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2015.     
  

Non-Current Liabilities

non-current liabilities include principal amounts of 
revenue bonds payable, notes payable, and contracts 
payable that are due beyond the next fiscal year, estimat-
ed amounts for accrued compensated absences, early 
retirement, and long-term deposits.   
    

Net Position  

the university’s net position is classified as follows:  
  
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL  ASSETS:  this 
represents the university’s total investment in 
capital assets net of obligations related to those 
capital assets. to the extent debt has been incurred, 
but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts 
are not included as a component of net investment in 
capital assets.

RESTRICTED — NON-EXPENDABLE: restricted – 
non-expendable net position consists of endowment 
and similar-type funds which, as a condition of the gift 
instruments, the donors or other outside sources have 
stipulated that the principal is to be maintained inviolate 
and in perpetuity and invested for the purpose of pro-
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ducing present and future income. the income may either 
be expended or added to principal. also included in this 
category are funds received from donors for the purpose 
of providing short and long-term loans to students.  
     
RESTRICTED — EXPENDABLE:  restricted – 
expendable net position includes resources in which the 
university is legally or contractually obligated to spend 
in accordance with restrictions imposed by external 
third parties.      
 
UNRESTRICTED: unrestricted net position represents 
resources derived from student tuition and fees, state 
appropriations, and sales and services of educational 
departments. these resources are used for transactions 
relating to the educational and general operations of the 
university and may be used at the discretion of the gov-
erning board to meet current expenses for any purpose. 
these resources also include auxiliary enterprises, which 
are substantially self-supporting activities that provide 
services primarily for students.  

Classification of 
Revenues and Expenses  
  
OPERATING REVENUES:  operating revenues include 
activities that have the characteristics of exchange 
transactions such as: (1) student tuition and fees, net 
of scholarship allowances; (2) sales and services of 
auxiliary enterprises and other departments; (3) most 
federal, state, and local contracts and grants and 
federal appropriations; and (4) interest on institutional 
student loans. 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES:  non-operating revenues 
include activities that have the characteristics of non-ex-
change transactions, such as gifts, contributions, and 
other revenue sources that are defined as non-operating 
revenues based on gasb statement no. 9, reporting 
Cash Flows of Proprietary and Non-Expendable Trust Funds 
and governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund 
Accounting and gasb statement no. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for 

State and Local governments. examples of non-oper-
ating revenues would include state appropriations and 
investment income.

OPERATING/NON-OPERATING EXPENSES:  with the 
exception of interest expense and losses on the disposal 
of capital assets, all expense transactions are classified 
as operating expenses.     
 

Scholarship Allowances  
 

student tuition and fee revenues are reported net of 
scholarship allowances in the statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net Position. scholarship al-
lowances are the difference between the stated charge 
for goods and services provided by the university and 
the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties 
making payments on the students’ behalf. to the extent 
that revenues from other sources are used to satisfy 
tuition and fees and other student charges, the univer-
sity has recorded a scholarship allowance to eliminate 
overstating total revenues to the university and proper-
ly record the revenues at the original source.  
     

Segment Reporting   
      
the university, through the utah state board of re-
gents, issues revenue bonds to finance certain activities. 
the university has deemed it not necessary to report 
segments on these bond issues, based upon the crite-
ria provided in gasb statement no. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
for State and Local governments and gasb statement 
no. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. 
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C. Investments 
funds available for investment are pooled to maximize 
return and minimize administrative cost, except for 
funds that are authorized by the university administra-
tion to be separately invested or which are separately in-
vested to meet legal or donor requirements. investments 
received as gifts are recorded at market or appraised 
value. if no market or appraised value is available, invest-
ments received as gifts are recorded at a nominal value. 
other investments are also recorded at fair value.

university personnel manage certain portfolios, while 
other portfolios are managed by banks, investment 
advisors, or through trust agreements. 

according to the university’s investment Policy, the 
governing board may appropriate for expenditure as 
much of the net appreciation, realized and unrealized, 
of an endowment’s corpus as is prudent under the facts 
and circumstances prevailing at the time of the action or 
decision. the appropriation must be for the purposes for 
which the endowment is established and also includes a 
management fee.

the endowment income spending policy at June 30, 
2015, is 4 percent of the 12 quarter moving average of 
the market value of the endowment pool. the spending 
policy is reviewed periodically and any necessary chang-
es are made.

the amount of net appreciation on 
investments of donor-restricted endow-
ments that was available for authoriza-
tion for expenditure at June 30, 2015, 
was $25,847,580. the net appreciation 
is a component of restricted expendable 
net position.

B. Cash and Cash 
Equivalents, 
and Short-Term 
Investments  
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and invest-
ments with an original maturity of three months or less. 
short-term investments consist of investments with an 
original maturity greater than three months that will ma-
ture within one year or less. cash, depending on source 
of receipts, is pooled except when legal requirements 
dictate the use of separate accounts. the cash balanc-
es and cash float from outstanding checks are invested 
principally in short-term investments that conform to 
the provisions of the utah code. it is the practice of the 
university that the investments ordinarily be held to 
maturity at which time the par value of the investments 
will be realized.

the utah state treasurer’s office operates the utah 
Public treasurers’ investment fund (Ptif) which is in-
vested in accordance with the state money management 
act. the state money management council provides 
regulatory oversight for the Ptif. the Ptif is available 
for investment of funds administered by any utah 
Public treasurer.

at June 30, 2015,
cash and cash 
equivalents 
and short-term
investments 
consisted of:
(figure b.1)  
   
   
  

FIguRE B.1

CASH And CASH eqUiVALentS
cash $9,886,590 

money market accounts 11,100,000 

money market mutual funds 393,167 

repurchase agreements 4,022,698 

utah Public treasurers’ 
   investment fund 59,727,397 

total $85,129,852  

SHoRt-teRm inVeStmentS
commercial paper and 
   corporate notes $45,407,389 

municipal bonds  985,000 

time certificates of deposit 59,530 

total $46,451,919  
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at June 30, 2015, the investment portfolio composition 
was as follows: (figure c.1)    
       
     

D. Deposits and 
Investments 
the utah state money management act defines the 
types of securities authorized as appropriate investments 
for the university’s non-endowment funds and the con-
ditions for making investment transactions. investment 
transactions may be conducted only through qualified 
depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of 
the investment securities.

statutes authorize the university to invest in negotia-
ble or non-negotiable deposits of qualified depositories 
and permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and 
reverse repurchase agreements; commercial paper that 
is classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized 
statistical rating organizations; bankers’ acceptances; 
obligations of the united states treasury including bills, 
notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage 
derivative products, issued by u.s. government spon-
sored enterprises (u.s. agencies) such as the federal 
home Loan bank system, federal home Loan mortgage 
corporation (freddie mac), federal national mortgage 
association (fannie mae), and student Loan marketing 
association (sallie mae); bonds, notes, and other evi-
dence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the 
state; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable rate 

securities rated “a” or higher, or the equivalent of “a” 
or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating 
organizations; shares of certificates in a money market 
mutual fund as defined in the act; and the utah state 
Public treasurers’ investment fund.

the Ptif is not registered with the securities and 
exchange commission as an investment company. the 
Ptif is authorized and regulated by the state money 
management act, section 51-7, utah code annotated, 
1953, as amended. the act established the state money 
management council, which oversees the activities of 
the state treasurer and the Ptif and details the types of 
authorized investments. deposits in the Ptif are not in-
sured or otherwise guaranteed by the state of utah, and 
participants share proportionally in any realized gains or 
losses on investments.

the Ptif operates and reports to participants on an 
amortized cost basis. the income, gains, and losses - net 
of administration fees, of the Ptif are allocated based 
upon the participant’s average daily balance. the fair 
value of the Ptif investment pool is approximately equal 
to the value of the pool shares.

state law allows endowment funds of higher educa-
tion institutions to be invested in accordance with the 
utah state board of regents (board of regents) default 
investment guidelines or in accordance with policies 
adopted by the institution’s board of trustees and ap-
proved by the board of regents. the university invests 
endowment funds in accordance with policies adopted 
by the board of trustees and approved by the board 
of regents.

the university’s investment Policy allows the university 
to invest endowment funds in investments authorized by 
the utah state money management act or any of the fol-
lowing investments: readily marketable equities, which 
are diversified across a spectrum of market capitaliza-
tions, multiple regions, by issue, industry, and sector; 
readily marketable fixed income investments diversified 
by country, issue, sector, coupon, and quality; bonds 
having a minimum quality of “a” or better; non-invest-
ment grade securities, limited to 20 percent of a manag-
er’s portfolio; foreign securities, limited to 15 percent of 
a manager’s portfolio and alternative investments that 

FIguRE C.1

alternatives $28,408,122 

commercial paper and corporate notes 41,487,962 

common and preferred stocks 23,123,652 

municipal bonds 24,559,949 

mutual funds 112,360,670 

obligations of the u.s. government 
   and its agencies 181,878,013 

time certificates of deposit 3,353,091 

total investments (fair value) $415,171,459 
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derive returns primarily from high-yield and distressed 
debt (hedged or non-hedged), natural resources, private 
capital (including venture capital, private equity, both 
domestic and international), commodities, private real 
estate assets or absolute return, and long/short hedge 
funds. in addition endowment funds may be invested as 
specifically directed by donor agreement.

Deposits
at June 30, 2015, the carrying amounts of the univer-
sity’s deposits and bank balances were $20,837,944 
and $23,258,629 respectively. the bank balances of the 
university were insured for $1,816,533 by the federal 
deposit insurance corporation. the bank balances in ex-
cess of $1,816,533 were uninsured and uncollateralized, 
leaving $21,442,096 exposed to custodial credit risk. all 
deposits were held by a qualified depository as defined 

by the utah state money management act. the state of 
utah does not require collateral on deposits.

custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the 
event of a bank failure, the university’s deposits may not 
be returned to the university. the university does not 
have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

Investments 

as of June 30, 2015, the university had the following 
investments and maturities: (figure d.1)

INTEREST RATE RISK: interest rate risk is the risk that 
changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair val-
ue of an investment. the university’s policy for manag-
ing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing 
interest rates is to comply with the state’s money

       

     
FIguRE D.1  inVeStment mAtURitieS (in YeARS) 

inVeStment 
tYPe

FAiR 
VALUe

LeSS 
tHAn 1 1 – 5 6 – 10

gReAteR 
tHAn 10

money market mutual funds $393,167 $393,167  - - -

utah Public treasurers’
    investment fund 59,727,397 59,727,397  - - -

commercial paper and 
    corporate notes 86,895,351 45,407,389 $20,807,431 $2,206,404 $18,474,127 

municipal bonds 25,544,949  985,000 10,670,334 1,415,000 12,474,615 

mutual funds – bonds 32,553,454 - 19,936,074 12,617,380 -

repurchase agreements 4,022,698 4,022,698 - - -

negotiable certificates
    of deposit 3,353,091 - - - 3,353,091 

u.s. agencies 181,158,560  - 87,992,189 15,924,574 77,241,797 

u.s. treasury securities 719,453 - 582,953 136,500 -

totals 394,368,120 $110,535,651 $139,988,981 $32,299,858 $111,543,630 

common and preferred stock 23,123,652 

mutual funds – equities 79,807,216 

alternatives 28,408,122 

total $525,707,110 
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management act or the university’s investment Policy, 
as applicable. for non-endowment funds, 
section 51-7-11 of the money management act requires 
that the remaining term to maturity of investments 
may not exceed the period of availability of the funds to 
be invested. the act further limits the remaining term 
to maturity on all investments in commercial paper, 
bankers’ acceptances, fixed-rate negotiable deposits, 
and fixed-rate corporate obligations to 270 days – 15 
months or fewer. in addition variable-rate negotiable 
deposits and variable-rate securities may not have a 
remaining term to final maturity exceeding three years. 
for endowment funds, the university’s investment 
Policy requires only that investments be made as a 

prudent investor would, by considering the purposes, 
terms, distribution requirements, and other circum-
stances of the endowments and by exercising reason-
able care, skill, and caution.

CREDIT RISK: credit risk is the risk that an issuer 
or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligation. the university’s policy for reducing its 
exposure to credit risk is to comply with the state’s 
money management act and the university’s invest-
ment Policy, as previously discussed.

as of June 30, 2015, the university had the following 
investments with quality ratings: (figure d.2)

FIguRE D.2 qUALitY RAting 

inVeStment tYPe FAiR VALUe AAA AA A BBB

money market mutual funds $393,167  -  - -  - 

utah Public treasurers’ 
   investment fund  59,727,397 -  -  -  - 

commercial paper and corporate notes  86,895,351 $2,701,659 $899,341 $64,700,265 $11,243,643 

municipal bonds  25,544,949 1,068,410 15,142,513  6,884,089  2,449,937 

mutual funds – bonds  32,553,454 -  -  -  - 

repurchase agreements 4,022,698 -  - - - 

negotiable certificates of deposit  3,353,091 - -  -  - 

u.s. agencies  181,158,560 -  175,617,307  - - 

u.s. treasury securities  719,453 - - - -

totals $394,368,120 $3,770,069 $191,659,161 $71,584,354 $13,693,580 

  qUALitY RAting (continued) 

inVeStment tYPe BB UnRAted no RiSk

money market mutual funds - $393,167 -

utah Public treasurers’ 
   investment fund - 59,727,397  -

commercial paper and corporate notes $5,286,461 2,063,982 - 

municipal bonds - - - 

mutual funds – bonds - 32,553,454 -

repurchase agreements  - 4,022,698 - 

negotiable certificates of deposit - 3,353,091 - 

u.s. agencies -  5,153,001 $388,252 

u.s. treasury securities - - 719,453 

totals $5,286,461 $107,266,790 $1,107,705 
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CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK: custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the 
counterparty, the university will not be able to recover the 
value of the investments that are in the possession of an 
outside party. the university does not have a formal invest-
ment policy for custodial credit risk. at June 30, 2015, the 
university had $4,022,698 in repurchase agreements where 
the underlying securities were uninsured and held by the 
counterparty, but not in the university’s name. at June 30, 
2015, the university also had $23,123,652 in common and 
preferred stock, $181,158,560 in u.s. agencies, $86,895,351 
in commercial paper and corporate notes, $3,353,091 in ne-
gotiable certificates of deposit, and $25,544,949 in munic-
ipal bonds which were uninsured and held by the counter-
party, but not in the university’s name.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK: concentration of 
credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of 
a government’s investment in a single issuer. for endow-
ment funds, the university policy requires diversification 
of investments across a broad spectrum and specific limits 
to concentration of securities within categories of equities, 
fixed income, and alternatives. rule 17 of the state money 
management council limits non-endowment fund invest-
ments in a single issuer of commercial paper and corporate 
obligations to 5 percent. the money management council 
limitations do not apply to securities issued by the u.s. 
government and its agencies.    
 

at June 30, 2015, the university held more than 5 percent 
of total investments in securities of the federal farm 
credit bank, federal home Loan mortgage corporation, 
and the federal home Loan bank. these investments 
represent 17.40, 6.76, and 6.05 percent respectively of 
the total investments.     
       
under the terms of various limited partnership agree-
ments approved by the board of trustees or by univer-
sity officers, the university is obligated to make periodic 
payments for advance commitments to venture capital, 
natural resource, and private equity investments. as of 
June 30, 2015, the university had committed, but not 
paid, a total of $7,890,477 in funding for these alterna-
tive investments. 

 

E. Accounts, 
Credits, and 
Student Loans 
Receivable 
accounts receivable consisted of the following at 
June 30, 2015: (figure e.1)     

   

FIguRE E.1

CURRent
non-

CURRent totAL
due from primary government

state contracts and grants $2,117,781  - $2,117,781 

state appropriations 1,215,553   - 1,215,553 

state grant – ustar 6,287,945  - 6,287,945 

Land-grant revenue 180,502  - 180,502 

due from state treasurer 3,376,301  - 3,376,301 

due from others

contracts and grants 35,371,763 - 35,371,763 

Pledges receivable 1,653,800 $39,283,670 40,937,470 

auxiliary and service enterprises 1,585,860  - 1,585,860 

other activities 4,815,128 453,659 5,268,787 

total accounts receivable 56,604,633 39,737,329 96,341,962 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (699,989)   - (699,989)

net accounts receivable $55,904,644 $39,737,329 $95,641,973 
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credits receivable, $572,406, reflect amounts due from 
vendors doing business primarily with the university’s 
campus store.      
   
student loans receivable are comprised primarily of loans 
issued through the federal Perkins Loan Program (fPLP) 
and short-term loans issued from funds set aside by the 
university for that purpose.    
     
the fPLP loans provide for cancellation of a loan at rates 
of 10 percent to 30 percent per year up to a maximum of 
100 percent if the participant complies with certain pro-
visions. the fPLP loans become payable by the student 
after completion of academic degrees or termination as 
a student, with a term of ten years and an interest rate 

of 5 percent. in the event the university should withdraw 
from the fPLP or the government were to cancel the 
program, the amount for which the university would 
be liable to the federal government as of June 30, 2015, 
is $10,893,131.

as the university determines that loans are uncollectible 
and not eligible for reimbursement by the federal gov-
ernment, the loans are written off and assigned to the 
u.s. department of education.    
       
other university short-term loans have a term of two to 
four months and carry an interest rate of 7 percent to 12 
percent. the 12 percent rate applies if the loan becomes 
delinquent. notes receivable are as follows: (figure e.2) 
       
     

FIguRE E.2

CURRent non-CURRent
totAL 

ReCeiVABLe
federal Perkins Loan Program $849,881 $11,328,091 

other notes receivable 537,046 598,579 

total notes receivable 1,386,927 11,926,670 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (25,053) (165,621)

net notes receivable $1,361,874 $11,761,049 

USU is the state’s only land-grant institution, providing extension units in 28 of Utah’s 29 
counties and at the Ogden Botanical Gardens, Thanksgiving Point, and the USU Botanical 
Center to help improve the quality of life for individuals, families, and communities in Utah.

$10,478,210

61,533

10,539,743

$10,399,175(140,568)

$10,399,175
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F. Property, Plant, and Equipment

interest capitalized as part of building construction 
was $1,470,768 and is included as part of construction 
in progress.     
 

 

the university’s investment in property, plant, and 
equipment consists of the following: (figure f.1)  
     

BALAnCe
JUne 30, 2014 AdditionS tRAnSFeRS diSPoSALS

BALAnCe
JUne 30, 2015

Property, plant, and equipment not depreciated

Land $37,757,475 $1,591,910 - ($3,290,010) $36,059,375 

construction in progress

buildings 21,459,148 57,694,398 ($11,122,616) - 68,030,930 

improvements other than buildings 474,732 1,502,551  (1,671,071) - 306,212 

equipment 185,708 236,243  (92,014) - 329,937 

art and special collections 23,168,258 2,550,780 - - 25,719,038 

total Property, Plant, and equipment 
   not depreciated  

other property, plant, and equipment

buildings $789,884,920 $1,342,730 $11,146,791 ($1,407,809) $800,966,632 

improvements other than buildings 74,109,005 -  1,671,071 - 75,780,076 

equipment 168,987,927 8,877,831  67,839 (5,099,274) 172,834,323 

Library collections 75,055,324 796,381 -  (40,005) 75,811,700 

total other property, plant, and equipment 1,108,037,176 11,016,942 12,885,701 (6,547,088) 1,125,392,731 

Less accumulated depreciation

buildings (295,312,767) (22,995,563) -  150,167 (318,158,163)

improvements other than buildings (44,169,144) (2,961,188) - - (47,130,332)

equipment (116,608,738) (13,310,849) - 4,750,615 (125,168,972)

Library collections (53,520,141) (2,442,040) -  40,005 (55,922,176)

total accumulated depreciation (509,610,790) (41,709,640)  0 4,940,787 (546,379,643)

net other capital assets $598,426,386 ($30,692,698) $12,885,701 ($1,606,301) $579,013,088 

capital assets – summary

capital assets not depreciated $83,045,321 $63,575,882 ($12,885,701) ($3,290,010) $130,445,492 

other capital assets at cost 1,108,037,176 11,016,942 12,885,701 (6,547,088) 1,125,392,731 

total cost of capital assets 1,191,082,497 74,592,824  0 (9,837,098) 1,255,838,223 

Less accumulated depreciation (509,610,790) (41,709,640) - 4,940,787 (546,379,643)

net capital assets $681,471,707 $32,883,184 $0 ($4,896,311) $709,458,580 

FIguRE F.1

$63,575,882$83,045,321 ($12,885,701) ($3,290,010) $130,445,492 
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g. Accounts 
Payable and 
Accrued 
Liabilities 
accounts payable consisted of the following at 
June 30, 2015: (figure g.1)   
  

H. Bonds, Notes, 
Contracts, and 
Other Non-Current 
Liabilities 
assets pledged for payment of bonds and contracts include 
the net revenue of auxiliary enterprises, land-grant funds, 
specific student fees, and reimbursed facilities and adminis-
trative costs. the gross amount of capital assets purchased 
under capital lease as of June 30, 2015, was $35,687,922. 
bonds, notes, and contracts outstanding at June 30, 2015 
were as follows: (figure h.1) 

FIguRE g.1

salaries and benefits payable     
   ($2,899,478 due to 
   primary government) $32,871,776 

due to primary government 13,958,551 

suppliers payable 17,264,966 

interest payable 823,732 

other 352,891 

total accounts Payable and 
   accrued Liabilities $65,271,916 

FIguRE H.1 JUne 30, 2015
bonds payable

stadium/spectrum and student recreation bonds

series 2013 2.00%-4.00%, 2013-2026, $8,405,000 $7,750,000 

series 2013b 3.00%-5.00%, 2014-2045, $43,310,000 43,310,000 

total stadium/spectrum and student recreation bonds 51,060,000 

student housing system revenue bonds

series 2007 4.00%-5.00%, 2005-2035, $39,155,000 39,155,000 

total student housing system revenue bonds 39,155,000 

research revenue bonds

series 2003 1.90%-4.40%, 2003-2016, $705,000 68,000 

series 2009 2.00%-5.00%, 2009-2031, $22,000,000 18,550,000 

series 2010 2.00%-5.00%, 2010-2017, $11,070,000 6,700,000 

total research revenue bonds 25,318,000 

total bonds payable 115,533,000 

notes and capital leases payable

state of utah – building ownership authority, 7.16%, 1998-2018 419,076 

bank of america, 4.18%, 2007-2022 1,023,689 

bank of america, 4.35%, 2010-2022 1,416,422 

bank of america, 1.49%, 2013-2018 509,609 

bank of america, 2.54%, 2014-2024    7,975,356 

capital one Public finance, 3.89%, 2014-2029 1,108,741 

state of utah – dfcm, 0%, 2011-2016 16,307 

Table continued on next page



Utah State University     |     FY 2015     |     Notes to Financial Statements40

in march 2015 the state board of regents authorized the 
issuance of research revenue refunding bonds in the 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $17,500,000. 
at June 30, 2015, the bonds had not been issued. the 

proceeds will be used to advance refund a portion of the 
2009 research revenue bonds. below is a summary of the 
changes in bonds, notes, and equipment contracts payable 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015: (figure h.2) 

FIguRE H.1  (continued) JUne 30, 2015
notes and capital leases payable

suntrust Leasing corp., 3.97%, 2008-2018 171,406 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.6956%, 2011-2016 68,674 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.34%, 2013-2022 650,078 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.078%, 2013-2020 246,636 

suntrust Leasing corp., 3.75%, 2008-2018 52,481 

suntrust Leasing corp., 4.5%, 2008-2018 43,668 

suntrust Leasing corp., 3.34%, 2011-2018 336,649 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.84%, 2012-2019 133,339 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.81%, 2013-2019 378,685 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.72%, 2013-2023 2,410,513 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.334%, 2013-2018 170,376 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.69%, 2013-2020    153,358 

suntrust Leasing corp., 3.11%, 2014-2021 223,477 

suntrust Leasing corp., 2.71%, 2015-2020    149,255 

suntrust Leasing corp., 3.04%, 2015-2022    169,766 

total notes and capital leases payable 17,827,561 

equipment contracts payable, 2011-2019 1,307,013 

total bonds, notes, and equipment contracts payable 134,667,574 

unamortized premiums and reoffering premiums (rP) on bonds

2007 bonds – rP 2,778,702 

2009 bonds – rP 417,684 

2010 bonds – rP 330,421 

2013 bonds – rP 491,823 

2013b bonds – premium 1,223,004 

total unamortized premiums and reoffering premiums on bonds 5,241,634 

total bonds, notes, and equipment contracts Payable net of unamortized 
   Premiums and reoffering Premiums on bonds $139,909,208 

FIguRE H.2

BondS

noteS And
CAPitAL
LeASeS

eqUiPment 
ContRACtS

totAL 
PAYABLe

UnAmoRtized
PRemiUm And

ReoFFeRing
PRemiUmS

totAL net oF
PRemiUm And

ReoFFeRing
PRemiUmS

balance at
   June 30, 2014 $120,768,000 $20,255,818 $2,122,962 $143,146,780 

additions   367,504  187,189 554,693  

deletions (5,235,000) (2,795,761)  (1,003,138) (9,033,899)

balance at
   June 30, 2015 $115,533,000 $17,827,561 $1,307,013 $134,667,574 

   $5,668,734         $148,815,514 

-- 554,693 

(427,100)

 $139,909,208 

(9,460,999)

$5,241,634
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the university has complied with the restrictive cove-
nants of its bond agreements. amounts due on bonds 
and contracts payable in future years are as follows:
(figure h.3)      

summary of changes in liabilities for the year ended 
June 30, 2015 is as follows: (figure h.4)   

       
      

       
       
  

FIguRE H.3

BondS
Bond

inteReSt

noteS And
CAPitAL
LeASeS

noteS And
CAPitAL 
LeASeS

inteReSt
eqUiPment
ContRACtS

eqUiPment
ContRACtS

inteReSt

totAL
AmoUnt

ReqUiRed

fy 2016 $5,583,000 $5,119,105 $2,489,053 $498,157 $747,635 $24,804 $14,461,754 

fy 2017 5,680,000 4,948,858 2,487,487 422,121  431,791  8,563 13,978,820 

fy 2018 5,895,000 4,735,646 2,587,008 343,756  97,877  1,927 13,661,214 

fy 2019 3,765,000 4,546,242 2,029,953 272,805  29,710  323 10,644,033 

fy 2020 3,940,000 4,373,167 1,879,511 214,513 10,407,191 

fy’s  2021-2025 22,595,000 18,961,719 6,009,668 370,544 47,936,931 

fy’s  2026-2030 24,250,000 13,634,827 344,881 23,510 38,253,218 

fy’s  2031-2035 22,415,000 7,989,743 30,404,743 

fy’s  2036-2040 9,430,000 4,072,003 13,502,003 

fy’s  2041-2045 11,980,000 1,505,078 13,485,078 

totals $115,533,000 $69,886,388 $17,827,561 $2,145,406 $1,307,013 $35,617 $206,734,985 

FIguRE H.4 Beginning
BALAnCe

JUne 30, 2014 AdditionS RedUCtionS

ending
BALAnCe

JUne 30, 2015

AmoUntS
dUe witHin

one YeAR

bonds, notes, and contracts payable

bonds payable $126,436,734  - ($5,662,100) $120,774,634 $5,583,000 

notes and capital leases payable 19,415,129 $367,504 (2,390,455) 17,392,178 2,342,496 

notes payable to primary government 840,689  - (405,306) 435,383 146,557 

equipment contracts payable 2,122,962 187,189 (1,003,138) 1,307,013 747,635 

total bonds, notes, and contracts payable 148,815,514 554,693 (9,460,999) 139,909,208 8,819,688 

other non-current liabilities

Liability for compensated absences 16,945,963 12,203,773 (11,650,166) 17,499,570 11,837,156 

Liability for early retirement 13,787,616 3,006,403 (5,272,590) 11,521,429 4,444,441 

deposit due to primary government  465,000  -       - 465,000     -

other liabilities  1,520,891 - 1,340,214  183,334 

net pension liability*  42,731,199  - 37,273,380     -

total other non-current liabilities 75,450,669 15,210,176 68,099,593 16,464,931 

total non-current Liabilities $224,266,183 $15,764,869 $208,008,801 $25,284,619 

*See Note P for prior period adjustment to net position.  
    

(180,677)

(5,457,819)

(22,561,252)

($32,022,251)

- - - -

--

- - - -

--

- - - -

--
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I. Pledged Bond 
Revenue    
the university issues revenue bonds to provide funds for 
the construction and renovation of major capital facili-
ties. investors in these bonds rely solely on the net reve-
nue pledged by the following activities for the retirement 
of outstanding bonds payable.

STUDENT FEE AND HOUSING SYSTEM is comprised 
of the net revenue from specific auxiliary enterprises and 
student building fee assessments. the student fee and 
housing system includes all university housing except 
the student Living center, Parking services, all of uni-
versity dining services, the net revenues of the taggart 
student center, student building fees specifically iden-
tified in the bond resolution, and land-grant revenues. 
the university has pledged future net revenues of the 
student fee and housing system to repay $39,155,000 in 
bonds issued in may 2007. Proceeds from the 1994 and 
2004 bonds provided financing for the construction and 
renovation of the student fee and housing system facil-
ities. Proceeds from the 2007 bonds were used to refund 
bonds issued in 2004. student fee and housing system 
annual net revenues are projected to produce at least 110 
percent of the annual debt service requirements over the 
life of the bonds. the total principal and interest remain-
ing to be paid on the bonds is $62,398,409. the bonds 
are payable solely from the student fee and housing 
system and are payable through 2035.

STUDENT FEE STADIUM/SPECTRUM RECREATION 
FACILITIES SYSTEM is comprised of those student fees 
specifically identified in the bond resolution and paid by 
students for the use and availability of the facilities. the 
university has pledged future revenues of the specif-
ically identified student fees to repay $8,405,000 and 
$43,310,000 in bonds issued in march 2013 and au-
gust 2013 respectively. Proceeds from the 2004 bonds 
provided financing for the renovating and remodeling of 
the university’s football stadium and a student recre-
ation center. Proceeds from the 2013 bonds were used 
to refund a portion of the bonds issued in 2004. Pro-

ceeds from the 2013b bonds are providing financing for 
a portion of the cost of constructing, equipping, and 
furnishing a student recreation center and a facility for 
basketball practice and volleyball competition. Proceeds 
from the 2013b bonds are also providing financing for 
the debt service payments during the period of con-
struction of the two facilities. student fee revenues are 
projected to produce at least 110 percent of the annual 
debt service requirements over the life of the bonds. the 
total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the 
bonds is $90,067,632. the bonds are payable solely from 
the student fee stadium/spectrum recreation facilities 
system and are payable through 2045.

RESEARCH REVENUE SYSTEM is comprised of the rev-
enue generated from the recovery of allocated facilities 
and administration costs to contracts and grants based 
on federally approved negotiated rate agreements. the 
university has pledged future revenues of the research 
revenue system to repay $705,000; $22,000,000; and 
$11,070,000 in bonds issued in march 2003, may 2009, 
and July 2010 respectively. Proceeds from the 2002 
bonds provided financing for the cost of acquiring, con-
structing, furnishing, and equipping three buildings as 
office and research facilities on the utah state univer-
sity innovation campus. Proceeds from the 2003 bonds 
provided for the acquisition of 550 acres of farmland, 
approximately 12 miles northwest of Logan, to replace 
university farmland now assigned to the university’s 
innovation campus. Proceeds from the 2009 bonds 
provided financing for the cost of acquiring, construct-
ing, and equipping two research facilities located at the 
university’s main campus and the vernal, utah campus. 
Proceeds from the 2010 bonds were used to refund 
a portion of the bonds issued in 2002. annual princi-
pal and interest payments on the bonds are expected 
to require less than 20 percent of revenues. the total 
principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds 
is $32,953,346. the bonds are payable solely from the 
research revenue system and are payable through 2031.

the following schedule presents the net revenue pledged 
to the applicable bond system and the principal and 
interest paid for the year ended June 30, 2015.
(figure i.1)
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K. Pension Plans 
and Retirement 
Benefits    
as required by state law, eligible non-exempt employees 
of the university (as defined by the u.s. fair Labor stan-
dards act) are covered by the utah retirement systems 
(systems). eligible exempt employees (as defined by 
the u.s. fair Labor standards act) are covered by the 
teachers insurance and annuity association – college 
retirement equities fund (tiaa-cref) and/or fidelity 
investments (fidelity). employees may also participate in 
defined contribution plans consisting of 401(k) and 457 
plans managed by the systems, tiaa-cref, fidelity, or 
educators mutual insurance association (emia).

Defined Benefit Pension Plans
the utah retirement systems are established and 
governed by the respective sections of title 49 of the 
utah code. the systems’ defined benefit plans are 
amended statutorily by the state Legislature. the utah 
state retirement office act in title 49 provides for the 
administration of the systems under the direction of the 
board, whose members are appointed by the governor. 
the systems are fiduciary funds defined as pension 

J. Operating 
Leases 
the utah state university research foundation leases 
various office, warehouse, and other facilities under 
noncancelable operating lease agreements which ex-
pire in fiscal year 2016 through fiscal year 2022. rental 
expense on the operating leases for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2015 was $1,339,370.  future minimum 
rental payments for these noncancelable operating 
leases are as follows: (figure J.1)    

FIguRE I.1
StUdent 
Fee And 

HoUSing
SYStem

StUdent Fee
StAdiUm/
SPeCtRUm

ReCReAtion
FACiLitieS SYStem

ReSeARCH
ReVenUe
SYStem

revenue

operating revenue/gross profit $23,832,909 $2,182,563 $31,035,127 

non-operating revenue 432,950 -  

total revenue 24,265,859 2,182,563 31,035,127 

expenses

operating expenses 16,135,438  -

total expenses 16,135,438 0 0 

net Pledged revenue $8,130,421 $2,182,563 $31,035,127 

Principal Paid and interest expense $3,673,263 $813,200 $4,039,848 

debt service ratio 2.21X 2.68X

FiSCAL YeARS 
ending JUne 30

FUtURe 
minimUm

RentAL 
PAYmentS

2016 $1,253,967 

2017 877,338 

2018 697,642 

2019 512,555 

2020 310,858 

Later years 113,447 

           total Payments $3,765,807 

-

-

7.68X

FIguRE J.1
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(and other employee benefit) trust funds. the systems are 
a component unit of the state of utah. title 49 of the utah 
code grants the authority to establish and amend the ben-
efit terms. the utah retirement systems issues a publicly 
available financial report that may be obtained by writing to 
the utah retirement systems, 560 east 200 south, salt Lake 
city, utah 84102 or visiting the website: www.urs.org.  
      
the systems are comprised of the following pension 
trust funds: 

•  The Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement 
system (noncontributory system), the Public employees 
contributory retirement system (contributory system), and 
the Public safety retirement system (Public safety system) 
are defined-benefit multiple employer, cost sharing, public 
employees retirement systems. 

•  Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement 
system (tier 2 Public employees system) is a multiple 
employer, cost sharing, public employees retirement 
system.

the tier 2 Public employees system became effective 
July 1, 2011. all eligible employees beginning on or after 
July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any 
of the utah retirement systems, are members of the tier 
2 retirement system.

the systems provide retirement, disability, and death 
benefits. retirement benefits are as follows: (figure K.1)

*With actuarial reductions    

**All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original 
benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase 
for the year, although unused CPI increases not met may be carried forward to subsequent years.  
    

FIguRE K.1

SYStem

FinAL 
AVeRAge 
SALARY

YeARS oF 
SeRViCe

ReqUiRed And/
oR Age eLigiBLe 

FoR BeneFit

BeneFit 
PeRCent PeR

YeAR oF SeRViCe CoLA**

contributory system Highest 5 years

30 years any age
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

1.25% per year 
to June 1975;
2.0% per year 

July 1975 to present

Up to 4.0%

noncontributory system Highest 3 years

30 years any age
25 years any age*
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

2.0% per year 
all years

Up to 4.0%

Public safety system Highest 3 years
20 years any age
10 years age 60
4 years age 65

2.5% per year 
up to 20 years;
2.0% per year 
over 20 years

Up to 2.5% –  4.0% 
depending on 
the employer

tier 2 Public 
   employees system Highest 5 years

35 years any age
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

1.5% per year 
all years Up to 2.5%
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as a condition of participation in the systems, employ-
ers and/or employees are required to contribute certain 
percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute 
and specified by the systems’ board. contributions are 
actuarially determined as an amount that, when com-
bined with employee contributions (where applicable), 

at december 31, 2014, the university reported a net 
pension asset of $46,288 and a net pension liability of 
$37,273,380.  (figure K.3)

     

the net pension asset and liability were measured as of 
december 31, 2014. the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension asset and liability was deter-
mined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2014 and 
rolled forward using generally accepted actuarial proce-

is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned 
by employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability. contribution rates are as follows: 
(figure K.2)    

 

dures. the proportion of the net pension asset 
and liability were based upon actual historical em-
ployer contributions to the plans from the census 
data submitted to the plan for pay periods ending 
in 2014.      

     

PRoPoRtionAte
SHARe

net
PenSion

ASSet

net
PenSion

LiABiLitY
contributory system  -

noncontributory system 1.4526055%            - 36,497,130

Public safety system 0.3425260%   -  636,495

tier 2 Public employees system 1.5274314%     $46,288 

    total net Pension asset/Liability $46,288 $37,273,380 

FIguRE K.2

emPLoYee 
PAid

PAid BY 
emPLoYeR 

FoR 
emPLoYeeS

emPLoYeR 
ContRiBUtion 

RAteS
contributory system 

12 – state and school division tier 1 N/A 6.00% 17.70%

112 – state and school division tier 2 N/A N/A 18.27%

noncontributory system 

16 – state and school division tier 1 N/A N/A 22.19%

Public safety retirement system 

42 – other division a noncontributory tier 1 N/A N/A          41.35% 

             
1.2745733%              $139,755 

FIguRE K.3

-



Utah State University     |     FY 2015     |     Notes to Financial Statements46

for the year ended december 31, 2014, the university 
recognized a pension expense of $7,098,347. at decem-
ber 31, 2014, the university’s portion of the reported 

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions were from the following 
sources: (figure K.4)     

 

FIguRE K.4 deFeRRed
oUtFLowS oF

ReSoURCeS

deFeRRed
inFLowS oF
ReSoURCeS

differences between expected and actual experience  -     

changes in assumptions  -  1,276,579

net difference between projected and actual
   earnings on pension plan investments

 
-  

changes in proportion and differences between 
   contributions and proportionate share of contributions  -

contributions subsequent to the measurement date  -  

    total $3,548,725 

of the amount reported as deferred outflows of 
resources related to pensions, $5,151,584 resulted 
from contributions made by the university prior to 
the fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measure-
ment date of december 31, 2014. these contribu-
tions will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the upcoming fiscal year. other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resourc-
es and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as pension expense as 
follows: (figure K.5) 

the total pension liability in the december 31, 2014 
actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement: (figure K.6)    

FIguRE K.5

YeARS ended 
deCemBeR 31

deFeRRed
oUtFLowS/
(inFLowS)

oF ReSoURCeS
2015             

2016

2017

2018

2019

thereafter

FIguRE K.6

inflation 2.75%

Average, including    
   inflation 

Net of pension plan   
   investment ex-   
   pense, including 
   inflation

salary increases

investment rate of return 7.5%

3.5% - 10.5%

$674,528

5,151,584

$5,826,112 

-

($742,277)

(742,277)

(742,277)

(596,757)

(8,097)

(42,509)

$2,272,146
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active member mortality rates are a func-
tion of the member’s gender, occupation, 
and age and are developed based upon plan 
experience. retiree mortality assumptions 
are highlighted in the table: (figure K.7)  
      

  

EDUM = Constructed mortality table based on 
actual experience of male educators multiplied by 
given percentage

EDUF = Constructed mortality table based on 
actual experience of female educators multiplied 
by given percentage

RP 2000mWC = RP 2000 combined mortality 
tables for males with white collar adjustments 
multiplied by given percentage

    RetiRed memBeR moRtALitY

CLASS oF memBeR
educators 

men EDUM (90%)

women EDUF (100%)

Public safety and firefighters  

men RP 2000mWC (100%) 

women EDUF (120%)

Local government, public employees

men RP 2000mWC (100%)

women EDUF (120%)

USU is known for its 
strength in academics 
and counts 20 Goldwater 
Scholars among its 
graduates in the past 10 
years. Undergraduate 
Kathryn “Katie” Sweet is 
a 2015 Goldwater Scholar 
recognized for her 
outstanding achieve-
ments in science and 
mathematics. 

FIguRE K.7
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the actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2014 val-
uation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the five-year period ending december 31, 2013.

the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates 
of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 

the 7.5 percent assumed investment rate of return is com-
prised of an inflation rate of 2.75 percent, a real return of 
4.75 percent that is net of investment expense.

the discount rate used to measure the total pension 
liability was 7.5 percent. the projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate 
and that contributions from all participating employers will 
be made at contractually required rates that are actuarially 
determined and certified by the systems’ board. based 
on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all project-
ed future benefit payments of current active and inactive 

class. these ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weight-
ing the expected future real rates of return by 
the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. the target allocation 
and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class are summa-
rized in the following table: (figure K.8)  
      

employees; therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability.

the following presents the proportionate share of 
the net pension (asset)/liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what 
the proportionate share of the net pension (asset)/
liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
(6.5%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.5%) than 
the current rate: (figure K.9)    
      
     

FIguRE K.8

  exPeCted RetURn ARitHmetiC BASiS   

ASSet CLASS 

tARget 
ASSet 

ALLoCAtion

ReAL 
RetURn

ARitHmetiC 
BASiS

Long-teRm
exPeCted 

PoRtFoLio 
ReAL RAte oF 

RetURn

equity securities 40.00% 7.06% 2.82%

debt securities 20.00% 0.80% 0.16%

real assets 13.00% 5.10% 0.66%

Private equity 9.00% 11.30% 1.02%

absolute return 18.00% 3.15% 0.57%

cash and cash equivalents 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

total 100.00% 5.23%

               inflation 2.75%

                      expected arithmetic   
                          nominal return 7.98%
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detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the systems’, separately issued, 
financial report. 

Defined Contribution Plans 

retirement plan employees are also eligible to participate 
in deferred compensation 401(k) and 457 defined contri-
bution plans. these plans are available as supplemental 
plans to the basic retirement benefits of the systems and 
as a primary retirement plan for some tier 2 Public em-
ployee system participants.  under certain irs and plan 
restrictions, employees can make additional contributions. 
employer contributions may be made into the plans at 
rates determined by the employers and according to utah 
code title 49. the defined contribution plans’ account 

balances are fully vested to the participants at the time 
of deposit except for tier 2 required employer contribu-
tions and associated earnings during the first four years 
of employment. 

for employees participating in defined benefit plans, 
the university is also required to contribute 1.5-1.78 
percent of the employee’s salary into a 401(k)/457 plan. 
for employees who choose to participate in the tier 2 
Public employee defined contribution plan (tier 2 dc), 
the university is required to contribute 20.05 percent of 
the employees’ salary of which 10 percent is paid into a 
401(k)/457 plan while the remainder is contributed to the 
tier 1 contributory Public employee system, as required 
by law.  employer and employee contributions to the 
401(k)/457 plans for fiscal years ending June 30 were 
as follows: (figure K.10)     
       
 

401(k), tieR 2 dC, And 457 PLAnS

2015 2014 2013
university’s contributions $975,473 $769,297 $671,526 

employees’ contributions $1,107,326 $957,746 $911,530 

FIguRE K.9 

PRoPoRtionAte SHARe oF net PenSion 
LiABiLitY/(ASSet) 

1% deCReASe
6.50%

diSCoUnt RAte 
7.50%

1% inCReASe
8.50%

contributory system  $1,172,512 

noncontributory system 72,714,511 

Public safety system  1,177,978 

tier 2 Public employees system 340,419 

        total net Pension Liability $75,405,420 $5,283,694 

FIguRE K.10

($733,786)$139,755 

6,165,011 36,497,130 

190,349636,495 

$37,227,092

(337,880)(46,288)
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emia provides a 401(k) defined contribution plan that can 
be utilized by employees on the utah retirement state and 
school system – noncontributory plan. this contribution is 
in lieu of the 1.5 percent that would have been contributed 
to the utah retirement system’s 401(k) plan. the contri-

tiaa-cref and/or fidelity provide individual defined con-
tribution retirement fund contracts with each participating 
employee. employees may allocate contributions by the 
university to any or all of the providers and the contracts 
become vested at the time the contribution is made. em-
ployees are eligible to participate from the date of employ-
ment and are not required to contribute to the fund. bene-
fits provided to retired employees are based on the value of 

L. Termination 
Benefits  
the university provides an early retirement option to em-
ployees who qualify and are approved by administration in 
accordance with university policy. this option is available to 
all employees whose accumulated age and years of service 
are equal to or greater than 75, that have met the minimum 
age requirements, and where early retirement is in the mu-
tual best interest of the employee and the university.

the policy provides two mutually exclusive early retirement 
options for eligible employees; either six years (16.67 percent 

bution made by the university is at 1.5 percent of gross 
earnings. contributions by the university become vested 
at the time the contribution is made. contributions for 
fiscal years ending June 30 were as follows: (figure K.11) 
    

individual contracts and the estimated life expectancy of 
the employee at retirement. the university’s contribution 
to this multiple employer defined contribution plan was 
14.2 percent (12.25% for post retirees) of the employees’ 
annual salary. the university has no further liability once 
annual contributions are made. contributions for fiscal 
years ending June 30 were as follows: 
(figure K.12)     

of base salary per year) or five years (20 percent of base 
salary per year). the six-year option requires a minimum age 
of 56 and the five-year option requires a minimum age of 57. 
benefits include a monthly stipend equal to the agreed upon 
percent of the retiree’s salary at the time of active employ-
ment along with medical and dental insurance.

the projected future cost of these stipends and the medical 
and dental insurance benefits have been calculated based on 
the known amount to be paid out in the next fiscal year plus 
projected increases of 0.65 percent (university), 3 percent 
(usurf) for stipends and 6.45 to 10.20 percent (universi-
ty), 9 percent (usurf) for medical and dental premiums. 
these increases are based on historical data. the premiums 
for medical and dental benefits have also been increased 

FIguRE K.12

tiAA-CReF And/oR FideLitY

2015 2014 2013
university’s contributions $25,156,952 $24,490,208 $23,682,706 

employees’ contributions $7,341,882 $6,704,498 $6,184,720 

FIguRE K.11

edUCAtoRS mUtUAL inSURAnCe 
ASSoCiAtion 401(k)

2015 2014 2013
university’s contributions $18,904 $19,896 $21,200 

employees’ contributions $60,077 $65,549 $66,396 
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by an age-adjusted factor of 2.89. the net present value of 
the total projected costs is calculated using the estimat-
ed yield (2.945%) for university investments in the cash 
management investment Pool and (4.17%) for usurf. the 
net present value is the amount recognized on the financial 
statements as the liability for early retirement.

at June 30, 2015, there were 110 participants in the early 
retirement program. the program is funded on a pay-
as-you-go basis from current funds. Payments for the 
program for fiscal years ending June 30 were as follows: 
(figure L.1)      

M. Risk 
Management  
General Liability Insurance  
  
the university maintains insurance coverage for general, 
automobile, personal injury, errors and omissions, employ-
ee dishonesty, and malpractice liability up to $10 million 
per occurrence through policies administered by the utah 
state risk management fund. the university also insures its 
buildings, including those under construction, and contents 
against all insurable risks of direct physical loss or damage 
with the utah state risk management fund. this all-risk 
insurance coverage provides for repair or replacement of 
damaged property at a replacement cost basis subject to 
a deductible of $1,000 per occurrence. all revenues from 
university operations, rental income for its residence halls, 
and tuition are insured against loss due to business inter-
ruption caused by fire or other insurable perils with the utah 
state risk management fund. all university employees are 

covered by worker’s compensation insurance, including 
employer’s liability coverage by the worker’s compensa-
tion fund of utah.

Self-Insurance for Employee 
Health and Dental Care
 
the university has a self-insurance fund for employee 
health and dental care. in addition, the university has pur-
chased a stop-loss insurance policy to cover specific par-
ticipant claims exceeding $400,000 per term and aggre-
gate claims exceeding 125 percent of expected claims up 
to $10 million. gasb statement no. 10 requires a liability 
for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance 
of the financial statements indicates it is probable that 
a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statements. the estimated claims liability is based upon 
past experience adjusted for current trends. the estimate 
reflects the ultimate cost of settling the claims. the uni-
versity’s estimated self-insurance claims liability at June 
30, 2015, and June 30, 2014, were as follows: 
(figure m.1)      
       
       
       
       

eARLY RetiRement PAYmentS

2015 2014 2013
stipends $1,321,632 $1,748,648 $1,737,496 

insurance benefits  $929,738  $1,292,698  $1,264,885 

2015 2014
estimated claims liability at beginning of year $5,477,587 $4,858,401 

current year claims and changes in estimates 43,222,134 41,835,094 

claim payments, including related legal and 
   administrative expenses (41,215,908)

    estimated claims Liability at end of year $5,090,236 $5,477,587 

(43,609,485)

FIguRE L.1

FIguRE M.1
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the university has recorded the investment of the health 
and dental care funds at June 30, 2015, and the estimat-
ed liability for self-insurance claims at that date in the 
statement of net Position. the income on fund invest-
ments, the expenses related to the administration of the 
self insurance, and the estimated provision for the claims 
liabilities for the year then ended are recorded in the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
Position and the statement of net Position.   
  

Contingencies
the university has been named in several lawsuits 
where litigation is pending. it is unlikely that any judg-
ments against the university will be established or would 
otherwise be material in nature. most lawsuits are such 
that any financial settlement would be covered primarily 
by insurance held by the university through the state’s 
division of risk management.

utah state university research foundation has a bank 
revolving line of credit with a limit of $3 million.  at June 
30, 2015, the outstanding balance was zero. the line of 
credit is unsecured, due on demand, and expires January 
10, 2016.

at June 30, 2015, the university had outstanding com-
mitments for the construction and remodeling of univer-
sity buildings of approximately $30 million.

N. Natural and 
Functional 
Classifications 
the university’s operating expenses by natural and 
functional classifications for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2015 were as follows: (figure n.1)   
       

FIguRE N.1 nAtURAL CLASSiFiCAtion

salaries
and wages

employee
pension and 

benefits

other
operating
expenses

scholarships
and

fellowships depreciation

total
operating
expenses

instruction $99,036,937 $35,848,557 $22,185,268 - - $157,070,762 

research 59,513,006 23,389,861 46,754,084 - - 129,656,951 

Public service 26,712,282 9,279,832 22,912,636 - - 58,904,750 

academic support 18,674,684 7,088,182 10,842,054 - - 36,604,920 

student services 11,163,763 3,777,973 9,057,354 - - 23,999,090 

institutional support 26,732,857 11,315,053 11,332,350 - - 49,380,260 

operation and maintenance 11,745,856 4,584,929 24,892,419 - - 41,223,204 

scholarships and fellowships - - - $32,920,131 - 32,920,131 

service departments 7,547,810 2,435,833 - -

auxiliary enterprises 16,917,109 5,034,972 20,515,229 - - 42,467,310 

depreciation - - - - $41,709,640 41,709,640 

total operating expenses $278,044,304 $102,755,192 $158,263,562 $32,920,131 $41,709,640 

(10,227,832) (244,189)

  $613,692,829

FUnCtionAL 
CLASSiFiCAtion
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O. Blended 
Presentation of 
Component units
the following is a condensed version of utah state university 
research foundation’s and utah state university foundation’s 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015: 
(figure o.1, o.2, o.3)      

ComPonent UnitS
CondenSed StAtement oF net PoSition

JUne 30, 2015

USURF FoUndAtion
assets

current assets $22,985,932 -

current assets due from the university 51,119 $42,183,195 

non-current assets 228,592 1,349,871 

non-current assets due from the university           131 

net capital assets 18,388,833 

total assets 41,654,476 43,533,197 

deferred outflows of resources     

resources related to pensions    295,686 

total deferred outflows of resources  295,686 0 

Liabilities

current liabilities 9,675,218 

current liabilities due to the university 2,031,826 

non-current liabilities 9,261,734 

non-current liabilities due to the university 2,881,624 

total liabilities 23,850,402 0 

deferred inflows of resources     

resources related to pensions    175,355 

total deferred inflows of resources  175,355 0 

net position

net investment in capital assets 8,562,549 

restricted

non-expendable

Primarily scholarships and fellowships 37,276,048 

expendable

research, instruction, and public service 5,785,795 

unrestricted  9,361,856 471,354 

total net Position $17,924,405 $43,533,197 

FIguRE O.1 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

--

-

-
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The University has not included the Advanced Weather Systems Foundation’s and the College of                
Eastern Utah Foundation’s financial statements because they are not considered to be material. 
         

ComPonent UnitS
CondenSed StAtement oF CASH FLowS

FoR tHe YeAR ended JUne 30, 2015

USURF FoUndAtion
net cash provided/(used) by:

(1) operating activities $4,369,680 -

(2) non-capital financing activities - $3,343,858 

(3) capital and related financing activities (4,149,453) -

(4) investing activities 9,429 (3,747,114)

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 229,656 (403,256)

cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year 6,056,862 1,374,741 

cash and cash equivalents – end of year $6,286,518 $971,485 

ComPonent UnitS
CondenSed StAtement oF ReVenUeS, exPenSeS, And CHAngeS in net PoSition

FoR tHe YeAR ended JUne 30, 2015

USURF FoUndAtion
operating revenues

Project revenues $49,681,586  - 

Project unit indirect costs, general and administrative costs, and cost of money 18,149,541 -

Project fees 4,406,262 -

administrative reimbursement, usu 1,091,587 -

royalty income 34,178  - 

other operating revenues 867,682 -

total operating revenues 74,230,836 $0 

operating expenses

salaries and wages 28,782,595 -

employee benefits 16,961,732 -

subcontracts 6,164,141 -

depreciation and amortization 2,444,857 -

research support to usu 524,776 -

other operating expenses 15,872,935 -

total operating expenses 70,751,036 0 

operating income 3,479,800 0 

non-operating revenues/(expenses)

Private gifts - 151,986 

other – net (317,304)

net non-operating revenues/(expenses) (317,304)

income/(loss) before other revenues 3,162,496 

other revenues

additions to permanent endowments - 3,605,345 

net other revenues - 3,605,345 

increase in net position 3,162,496 2,551,820 

net position – beginning of year as previously reported 16,689,149 40,981,377 

Prior period adjustments    -

net position – beginning of year as adjusted 14,761,909 40,981,377 

net Position – end of year $17,924,405 $43,533,197 

FIguRE O.2 

FIguRE O.3 

(1,205,511)

(1,053,525)

(1,053,525)

(1,927,240)
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P. Prior Period 
Adjustments of 
Net Position  
the university implemented gasb statement no. 68, 
Accounting and Financial reporting for Pensions, that 
requires governmental entities to record their share 
of any unfunded liability associated with participation 
in a defined benefit plan. as a result the university’s 
fiscal year 2015 beginning net position was reduced 
$38,160,754. this reduction reflects the university’s 
$41,963,736 share of the beginning net pension liability 
in the noncontributory systems, the university’s $4,836 
share of the beginning net pension asset in the contrib-
utory systems, the university’s $758,279 share of the 
beginning net pension liability in the Public safety sys-
tems, the university’s $9,184 share of the beginning net 
pension liability in the tier 2 Public employee systems, 
and the university’s $4,565,609 of contributions made to 
the systems between January 1 and June 30, 2014. see 
note K for further information on pension reporting.  
      
it was determined that some agency funds are univer-
sity funds. the university changed the classification of 
those agency funds. this change increased the universi-
ty’s fiscal year 2015 beginning net position by $950,079.

the cumulative effect of the two adjustments was a 
reduction of the university’s fiscal year 2015 beginning 
net position of $37,210,675.    
    

Q. Subsequent 
Events   
on July 9, 2015, the university’s $23,900,000 student 
building fee revenue bonds, series 2015, were issued 
for the purpose of paying a portion of the costs of 
renovation and construction at the university’s foot-
ball athletic facility. the bonds are payable through 
June 1, 2046. 
   
on september 23, 2015, the university’s $24,455,000 
student fee and housing system revenue bonds, series 
2015, were issued for the purpose of financing the costs 
of construction of a new, modern student housing facility 
within the main campus of the university. the new facil-
ity will replace an old, existing student housing facility. 
the bonds are payable through april 1, 2038.  
 

on october 8, 2015, the university’s $19,500,000 feder-
ally taxable research revenue bonds, series 2015, were 
issued for the purpose of financing the costs of con-
struction of a new space dynamics Laboratory facility at 
the innovation campus. the bonds are payable through 
december 1, 2046.     
  



Construction of the first building located on the new 
site of the USU Brigham City campus began in the fall 

of 2014 and is nearing completion. The facility was 
designed to serve up to 5,000 students and will be 

ready for classes as early as spring semester 2016. 
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Required
Supplementary
Information
Required supplementary information is required to accompany 
the basic financial statements and is considered an essential 
part of financial reporting.
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PRoPoRtionAte SHARe oF tHe net PenSion LiABiLitY
AS oF deCemBeR 31, 2014

non-
ContRiBUtoRY

SYStem
ContRiBUtoRY 

SYStem
PUBLiC SAFetY 

SYStem

tieR 2 PUBLiC 
emPLoYeeS

SYStem

Proportion of net pension liability/(asset) 1.4526055% 1.2745733% 0.3425260%

Proportionate share of net 
   pension liability/(asset) $36,497,130 $139,755 $636,495 

covered employee payroll $37,798,518 $460,897 $566,992 $7,493,666 

Proportionate share of net pension
   liability/(asset) as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 96.6% 30.3% 112.3%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
   of total pension liability 87.2% 98.7% 84.3% 103.5%

Note: The University implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, 
in fiscal year 2015. Information on the University’s portion of the plan’s net pension liability/(asset) is not 
available for periods prior to fiscal year 2015.       

($46,288)

(0.6%)

(1.5274314%)
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The open house and ribbon cutting for the 
new Science and Technology Classroom 
building at USU Tooele will be in January of 
2016. The new building will accommodate 
current and future growth in enrollments 
and programs.
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2015 2014 2013 2012
noncontributory system

contractually required contribution $9,328,000 $7,664,202 $6,949,647 $6,709,673 

contributions in relation to the contractually
   required contribution  9,328,000 7,664,202 6,949,647 6,709,673

contribution deficiency/(excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

covered employee payroll $37,836,787 $35,009,064 $36,016,837 $40,154,027 

contributions as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 24.65%    21.89% 19.30% 16.71%

contributory system*

contractually required contribution $102,041 $604,902 $416,961 $214,370 

contributions in relation to the contractually
   required contribution

 
102,041 

 
604,902 

 
416,961 

 
214,370 

 

contribution deficiency/(excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

covered employee payroll $430,553 $6,387,208 $4,212,028 $1,952,662 

contributions as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 23.70% 9.47% 9.90% 10.98%

Public safety system

contractually required contribution $162,713 $137,607 $138,459 $135,408 

contributions in relation to the contractually
   required contribution

 
162,713 

 
137,607  138,459  135,408 

 

contribution deficiency/(excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

covered employee payroll $582,052 $506,773 $528,817 $562,846 

contributions as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 27.96%    27.15% 26.18% 24.06%

tier 2 Public employees system*

contractually required contribution $694,490 N/A N/A

contributions in relation to the contractually
   required contribution

 
694,490 N/A N/A

contribution deficiency/(excess) $0 N/A N/A

covered employee payroll $8,337,218 N/A N/A

contributions as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 8.33%    N/A

SCHedULe oF ContRiBUtionS to tHe UtAH RetiRement SYStemS
FoR FiSCAL YeARS  ending JUne 30

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A N/A
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2015 2014 2013 2012
noncontributory system

contractually required contribution $9,328,000 $7,664,202 $6,949,647 $6,709,673 

contributions in relation to the contractually
   required contribution  9,328,000 7,664,202 6,949,647 6,709,673

contribution deficiency/(excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

covered employee payroll $37,836,787 $35,009,064 $36,016,837 $40,154,027 

contributions as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 24.65%    21.89% 19.30% 16.71%

contributory system*

contractually required contribution $102,041 $604,902 $416,961 $214,370 

contributions in relation to the contractually
   required contribution

 
102,041 

 
604,902 

 
416,961 

 
214,370 

 

contribution deficiency/(excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

covered employee payroll $430,553 $6,387,208 $4,212,028 $1,952,662 

contributions as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 23.70% 9.47% 9.90% 10.98%

Public safety system

contractually required contribution $162,713 $137,607 $138,459 $135,408 

contributions in relation to the contractually
   required contribution

 
162,713 

 
137,607  138,459  135,408 

 

contribution deficiency/(excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

covered employee payroll $582,052 $506,773 $528,817 $562,846 

contributions as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 27.96%    27.15% 26.18% 24.06%

tier 2 Public employees system*

contractually required contribution $694,490 N/A N/A

contributions in relation to the contractually
   required contribution

 
694,490 N/A N/A

contribution deficiency/(excess) $0 N/A N/A

covered employee payroll $8,337,218 N/A N/A

contributions as a percentage of 
   covered employee payroll 8.33%    N/A

*The Tier 2 Public Employees System (Tier 2) was created in fiscal year 2012. However, 
the contractually required contributions and covered payroll for Tier 2 were included in the 
Contributory System for fiscal years 2012 through 2014, since prior to the implementation of 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, in fiscal year 2015, 
Tier 2 information was not separately available. 
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2011

$6,124,421

 6,124,421

$0

$37,363,709 

$110,196

 
110,196

$0

$616,240

$104,135

104,135

$0

$315,243

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

$5,535,903 $5,931,890 $5,090,311 $4,898,118 $4,457,948 

 
5,535,903 

 
5,931,890 

 
5,090,311 

 
4,898,118 

 
4,457,948 

$0 $0 $0                    $0 $0

$38,965,526 $41,717,161 $35,780,342 $34,467,648 $33,303,804 

14.21%    14.22% 14.23% 14.21% 13.39%

$111,532 $130,346 $127,327 $134,425 $142,674 

 
111,532 

 
130,346  127,327 

 
134,425 

 
142,674 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$708,916 $828,648 $807,547 $854,576 $955,147 

15.73% 15.73% 15.77% 15.73% 14.94%

$119,548 $104,897 $109,570 $95,465 $85,315 

 
119,548  104,897  109,570 

 
95,465 

 
85,315 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$396,118 $373,445 $409,608 $356,879 $363,660 

30.18%    28.09% 26.75% 26.75% 23.46%

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

SCHedULe oF ContRiBUtionS to tHe UtAH RetiRement SYStemS
FoR FiSCAL YeARS  ending JUne 30

16.39%

17.88%

33.03%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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Executive Officers
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Robert T. Behunin, vice President for university advancement and commercialization

Kenneth L. White, vice President for extension and agriculture and dean of the college of agriculture and applied sciences

David T. Cowley, vice President for business and finance

Mark R. McLellan, vice President for research and dean of the school of graduate studies

James D. Morales, vice President for student services

Board of Trustees
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